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Directors 

R Neeson (Cinven Partners) (appointed 11 May 2018) 

D Tanase (Cinven Partners) (appointed 28 November 2019) 

S Rajagopalan     (Cinven Partners) (resigned 28 November 2019) 

Lord J Birt (appointed 15 August 2018) 

P Humphreys (resigned 31 December 2019) 

H Ashton (resigned 28 September 2020) 

B Gujral (appointed 1 January 2020) 

 

Details of Board composition and Director experience 

 

The Board is responsible for the Group’s objectives, business strategy, and its overall supervision and is primarily 

responsible for the promotion of the long-term success of the Company and the sustainable growth of shareholder 

value. The Board directs and reviews the Group’s operations within an agreed framework of controls, allowing risk to 

be assessed and managed within agreed parameters.  

The Board has established a formal schedule of matters reserved for its approval and majority shareholder consent, 

and has delegated other specific responsibilities to its Sub-Committees: the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee, 

and the Remuneration Committee. Each Committee’s roles and responsibilities are set out in formal terms of reference 

determined by the Board. 

Lord Birt (Chairman of the Board). Lord Birt brings extensive experience to the Group. Lord Birt has been a member 

of the House of Lords since 2000, and was the Prime Minister’s Strategy Adviser (2000-2005). Previously, Lord Birt 

was Director-General of the BBC. In addition, he has been an adviser to McKinsey and Chairman of PayPal Europe. 

He was Chairman of WRG, Infinis and Maltby Capital, the holding company of EMI.  Recently, Lord Birt has been 

Chairman of CPA Global and HEG. 

In January 2020, Ben Gujral was appointed as Group CFO and in January 2021 Ben was appointed as Group CEO, 

replacing Helen Ashton. Ben has over 15 years experience holding senior appointments in both listed and PE-backed 

businesses. He joined JLA from Cogital Group, a PE-backed services business, where he was Group CFO. Prior to 

that Ben acted as Group CFO of CPA Global.  

Rory Neeson Investor Director (representative of Cinven Partners LLP). Rory joined Cinven in 2009 and leads the 

Business Services sector team. He has been involved in several transactions in addition to JLA, including Guardian 

Financial Services, Gondola, INSEEC U, Maxeda, NewDay, Phadia and Viridium Group. Prior to joining Cinven, 

Rory was at Bain & Company for five years working in London, Madrid and Stockholm on projects across a variety of 

sectors including financial services, retail, industrials and publishing. Rory holds an MA in Economics from 

Cambridge University. 

Daniel Tanase Investor Director (representative of Cinven Partners LLP). Daniel joined Cinven in 2013 and is a 

member of the Business Services sector team and the regional team for Emerging Europe. He has been involved in a 

number of transactions including Barentz, Bioclinica, Prezioso, STANDA and Tinsa. Previously, Daniel was an 

associate at First Reserve and prior to that, he worked in the Global Natural Resources Group at Morgan Stanley. 

Daniel has a Bachelor of Commerce with a specialisation in Banking and Finance from the University College Dublin. 
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The current members of the Board hold positions on the Audit Risk and Compliance Committee and Remuneration 

Committee as detailed below; 

Lord Birt – Chairman and member of the Board Remuneration and Audit Risk and Compliance Committee 

Ben Gujral – Group CEO and member of the Audit Risk and Compliance Committee and Board Remuneration 

Committee 

Rory Neeson – Cinven, Investor Director and member of the Board Remuneration and Audit Risk and Compliance 

Committee 

Daniel Tanase - Cinven, Investor Director and member of the Audit Risk and Compliance Committee 

Registered Office 

Aztec Financial Services (Jersey) Limited 

11-15 Seaton Place 
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Jersey 

JE4 0QH 

Bankers 

Lloyds Bank 

Church Street 
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S1 2FF 

Auditor 

BDO LLP 

3 Hardman Street  

Manchester  

M3 3AT 

Manchester  
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The director’s present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 October 

2020. 

Corporate activity and shareholder transaction 

These accounts include all the transactions of the Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) for the accounting year 

ended 31 October 2020.   

The ultimate majority shareholder is the Sixth Cinven Fund. The partnerships comprising the Sixth Cinven Fund are 

established in Guernsey and are managed and controlled by Cinven Capital Management (VI) General Partner 

Limited. Approximately 26.5% of the Sixth Cinven Funds investment is held through two Luxembourg sociétés en 

commandite spéciales: Sixth Cinven FD 1 Lux SCSp and Sixth Cinven FD 2 Lux SCSp (together, the “SCSp 

vehicles”). The SCSp vehicles are both managed by their general partner (associé commandité), Cinven Lux GP (VI) 

S.a.r.l. 

Business model 

JLA is one of the UK’s leading providers of commercial laundry, catering, heating and fire safety solutions. The 

company strives to provide peace of mind to its customers by keeping critical areas of their businesses running 

smoothly. 

The Group offers a unique end-to-end solution called Total Care that provides customers with market leading 

equipment under a long-term hire agreement, combined with a comprehensive service and maintenance agreement.  

The company services the needs of its customers through a national engineering network and a continued focus on 

customer service and making JLA as easy as possible to deal with. 

JLA’s Total Care package provides customers with a one-stop-shop for equipment, maintenance and breakdown 

support. This replaces the multi-step procurement process as set out in the diagram below and makes JLA a single 

point of contact for the entire transaction process.  
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Business model (continued) 

JLA focuses on pieces of equipment which are highly critical to a business’ operations.  

 Failure of these assets typically happens c.2 times a year and generates high levels of inconvenience and costly 

downtime for target customers – many businesses would not be able to run within day(s) of breakdown.  

 Customers value the “peace of mind” for a relatively insignificant monthly payment (fixed or revenue share) 

compared to their overall P&L.  

 

 
 

Business strategy 

The Board has developed a very clear strategic vision which is being successfully deployed within the business. The 

vision is that JLA is a trusted partner to its customers. The strategy will look to continue to grow market share within 

the existing core business segments, along with identifying opportunities for growth in adjacent markets through both 

organic product and service development and strategic acquisitions.  

The Group will continue to provide a complete product supply and service solution to support its customer base, both 

existing and new, through the whole life cycle of various critical assets that are operated within their business. 

Through the Group’s unique sales infrastructure and national service support capability, it will bring new product 

offerings to the existing customer base and gain market share within adjacent targeted markets. The Group’s ambitious 

growth plans are underpinned by a robust deployment plan which has allowed the business to cascade the strategy 

down through the organisation. 

Business review 

The principal activities of the Group focus on critical asset solutions for a range of customers and comprise the long-

term hire, supply and maintenance of laundry, catering, heating and fire safety equipment and the supply of managed 

launderettes. The Group's key performance target is to grow turnover and profits in the long term. In the reporting 

period under review this has been achieved through a combination of organic growth combined and targeted 

acquisitions. Revenue for the 52-week period is £137.4 million (78-week period: £170.3 million). 
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Business review (continued) 

The Group took early action to protect the financial health of the business against the impact of COVID19 while at all 

times preserving its ability to honour its customer commitments. The Group has benefitted from the Furlough Job 

Retention Scheme and has also made organisational changes through a redundancy programme in response to a 

decline in demand in the hospitality industry specifically. A dedicated team has ensured the safety of all employees 

through the period and the Group has adapted well to home working and the increased protections put in place. The 

Group has experienced a very low incidence of employee absence as a result of the virus and monitors critical KPIs on 

an ongoing basis. As a result of the above measures the Group has shown resilience through the national lockdown in 

2021. 

The main measure of the Group’s profit performance is operating profit from continuing operations before 

depreciation, intangible asset amortisation, profit/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets, share based payments and 

separately disclosed items (“Adjusted EBITDA”). Adjusted EBITDA is £35.9 million (78-week period: £50.7 

million). See note 6 for separately disclosed items. Separately disclosed items are those items that are unusual because 

of their size, nature or incidence, which the directors consider should be disclosed separately on the face of the 

consolidated income statement in order to enable a full understanding of the group's results. The directors consider 

that this presentation gives a more accurate presentation of the results of the group. 

The Group recorded a loss after tax from continuing operations of £80.0 million (78-week period: £82.7 million) and 

reported net liabilities of £160.9 million (31 October 2019: £81.4 million). 

The Group has continued its expansion via five strategic acquisitions in the heating and fire divisions, and one in 

catering, for total cash consideration (net of cash acquired) of £15.1 million.  Further details of all acquisitions are 

contained in note 17. 

The consolidated statement of financial position on pages 22 and 23 shows the Group's financial position at the period 

end. The Group's financial position was considered satisfactory in terms of working capital and cash, and the directors 

believe the Group to be well positioned for future growth. The net liabilities of £160.9 million reflect the financing 

structure of the Group as discussed below. The consolidated statement of financial position reported cash of £31.5 

million (31 October 2019: £11.0 million). 

Non-Financial KPIS 

JLA has introduced a number of non-financial KPIs. These KPI’s are relevant and important as they are linked to the 

strategic priorities of the businesses and are recognised as key determining factors in the successful delivery of the 

business strategy. Any unintended outcomes or deviations from plan are reported to Cinven, with escalations to the 

Board as appropriate. 

Carbon footprint 

The Company sees sustainability as underpinning its strategy and core values. Given the number of engineers on the 

road servicing customers, carbon footprint reporting is seen as a measure of key importance and the company will, in 

conjunction with its obligations under the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) legislation, implement 

measures and controls to achieve economic and environmental benefits in this area.  

Lost time accident frequency rate 

The safety of its employees is of paramount importance to the Group and the focus on near miss reporting has 

improved greatly. Improved hazard perception by employees has reduced accidents overall and therefore the time lost 

to customers has reduced. The company has now set a target of zero time lost, which was achieved for the period 

ended 31 October 2020. 

Anti-bribery and corruption incidents 

JLA has sought to strengthen controls around bribery and corruption and has enhanced the formal training provided to 

colleagues to raise awareness. A Gifts and Hospitality register formally records gifts offered and received and an 

independent whistleblowing hotline provides a mechanism for the reporting of incidents of non-compliance across the 

Group. 
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Gender diversity 

The business continues to acknowledge that a gender pay gap exists, but the results of calculations from this year 

demonstrate the Company’s commitment to reducing the gender pay gap, with all calculations relating to the hourly 

pay and bonus pay showing a decrease. 

It is notable that a large proportion of the workforce are field based engineers which is a predominantly male based 

environment, therefore impacting on the gender pay calculations. JLA continues however to explore new opportunities 

to attract a more diverse engineering community within the Group, and remains confident in its ability to tackle this 

issue. Further information is provided under “Sustainability” below. 

Net Promoter Score 

NPS is a leading indicator used to measure a customer’s overall satisfaction with and perception of the brand. JLA 

uses this measure in conjunction with other metrics and insights from the customer journey, such as lost and saved 

contracts, to provide an actionable view of customer experience performance and to give early warning indicators of 

customer issues and propensity to leave. 

Future developments  

The Board has plans to grow the business significantly, both in terms of revenue and profitability, through organic 

growth within its existing core market segments and through acquisition.  

JLA has now established a meaningful position within the UK catering, fire safety and HVAC markets through both 

organic and acquisition related growth, and intends to use its strong platform to leverage the sizeable opportunities 

that these markets present.  

During the period, JLA continued to undertake acquisitions across these divisions and now has a meaningful position 

and national presence in all of these markets. 

Risk Management  

The Group continuously monitors and seeks to enhance its risk management and governance processes. The Group 

maintains a risk register and created a governance framework which has resulted in improved controls throughout the 

organisation. The risk register is monitored on a periodic basis and strong oversight, challenge and assurance is 

achieved through regular reporting to the Audit Risk and Compliance Committee and the Board as required. 

Principal risks and uncertainties 

The principal risks specific to the Group and how they are managed and mitigated are outlined below. 

Not all these factors are within the direct control of the Company or its directors and the list is not exhaustive. There 

may be other risks and uncertainties that are currently unknown and the list may change as something that seems 

immaterial now could assume greater importance in the future, and vice versa. 

 The principal risk affecting the Group relates to any downturn in economic conditions within the markets in 

which it operates. Although this is mitigated to a certain extent by the long-term contractual nature of much of 

the Group's income, the covid-19 pandemic and the resulting economic downturn has had an adverse impact to 

the business, particularly in sectors that have been affected by the lockdowns and tier systems announced by 

the government. 

 Following the United Kingdom’s departure from the European Union and the end of the subsequent transition 

period, the Group is keeping the implications of Brexit under review. The Board had closely analysed the 

possible impacts of Brexit and had prepared accordingly. Although the agreement reached between the United 

Kingdom and the European Union mean that there will not be an increase in duties and tariffs as a result of 

Brexit, the Group has increased stockholding of key lines in the financial period and post period end to 

mitigate the potential risks of any disruption to supply chains resulting from the increased complexity in 

importing goods from the European Union.  
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Principal risks and uncertainties (continued) 

 Like any business, the Group faces the risk of a cyber incident which results in the corruption or deletion of 

business critical data or downtime of business critical systems. The Group has invested heavily in tools and 

procedures in order to mitigate this risk, and periodically reviews its cyber security protocols to ensure the 

Group’s actions are in keeping with good practice in this area. 

 A major operational incident at the Group’s headquarters or other significant premises could cause extended 

interruption to normal business operations. The Group has invested heavily to mitigate against the impact of 

such an incident, including a generator to mitigate against the loss of electrical supply, moving its systems into 

a cloud environment and outsourcing the delivery of goods to a nationally recognised logistics supplier. These 

actions have reduced the effect that any major incident at the Group’s headquarters would have, but the Board 

remains vigilant to the risks posed by any such incidents.  

 The Group sources a number of products from overseas in prices denominated in foreign currencies. The 

weakness of sterling has the potential to make these goods more expensive in sterling terms. This risk is 

managed by a Group Treasury Committee, which meets on a regular basis, and may authorise the Group to 

enter into hedging contracts that typically fix the purchase price of a significant portion of the Group’s goods 

for the next 12-18 months. This is assessed against the amount of foreign currency held, and the timing of when 

hedging contracts are entered is determined accordingly. In addition, the Group has worked with its key 

suppliers to improve its supply chain relationships to help mitigate or share potential cost inflation risk. 

 Supply chain and inventory management – the Group’s cash flows from operations may be negatively affected 

if it is not successful in managing its inventory balances. The Group has developed a range of measures it 

employs to enable it to better manage its inventory levels throughout the course of the period. A new ERP 

system launched on 1 November 2019, and the resultant automation of many of the existing manual processes 

and improved data attributes, will add further rigour and timely information to the disciplines whilst delivering 

efficiencies throughout the stock ordering and replenishment cycles in future years. 

 Credit and liquidity risk is managed by maintaining a balance between the continuity of funding and flexibility 

through the use of the revolving credit facility at floating rates of interest. The Group’s credit risk is primarily 

attributable to its trade receivables. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure 

spread over a large number of customers and market segments. 

 Liquidity/cash flow risk - the Group and company are financed through a combination of bank and debt 

instruments that carry either fixed or variable rates of interest. The appropriateness of these bank and debt 

instruments and the risks related to variable rate debt are periodically reviewed by management and the Board. 

These facilities are secured against the assets of the Group including those of the Company. This financing 

provides the necessary headroom to support the business activities and strategy of the Group. 
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Sustainability Report 

Gender 

JLA operates an equal opportunities policy and opposes all forms of discrimination. The Group supports the provision 

of a living wage and gender equality. JLA prides itself in having such a diverse and talented workforce at its disposal, 

which is a key driver in the continued growth of the JLA Group. 

 2020 2019 

 Men Women Men Women 

The Board 4 - 4 1 

Executive Team 6 1 4 2 

Senior Leadership 

Team 

22 7 32 9 

Other employees 830 355 743 320 

Sustainability 

JLA’s strategy is grounded in sustainability with a focus on environmental consciousness. JLA will pursue a 

sustainable business strategy that has a positive impact on the environment, its customers and the wider society 

through initiatives in transport and fleet, logistics and operations, supply chain, sales and service and also through 

customer, colleague and community engagement.  

Environment and CSR 

The Group recognises the importance of minimising its impact on all aspects of the environment and communities in 

which it operates. The JLA Sustainability Board will meet monthly to discuss initiatives and progress in implementing 

“green” and sustainable initiatives throughout its business. 

 

Modern Slavery 

JLA is committed to improving its practices to ensure that slavery and human trafficking is not present either within 

the Group itself or its supply chain. JLA continues to take positive steps to this end and describes in its annual 

statement the progress that has been made over the last year. 
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s.172 Statement - Promoting the Success of the Company  

Our Approach 

As a Board, we have a duty to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of our members as a whole. In doing 

so, we must have regard to the interests of our employees, the success of our relationships with suppliers and 

customers and the impact of our operations on the environment, among other things.  

The interests of our stakeholders are key factors in our decision making process and set out below are some examples 

of how we have taken those interests into account.  

Our Employees 

Board considerations 

Our employees are our biggest asset and fundamental to the success of the Group. From the start of the pandemic, JLA 

made significant changes to working practices to ensure all staff could work in a safe environment. This included the 

procurement of appropriate personal protective equipment for our field engineering teams to enable them to work 

safely on customer premises; investing heavily in equipment to enable staff to work remotely; reorganising our office 

and other workplaces to facilitate effective social distancing at all times; and partnering with a private testing facility 

so as to provide comfort to customers and colleagues where necessary. 

We have continued to keep track of and comply with government guidance in all the areas of the UK in which we 

operate and have adapted our operating procedures accordingly so as to provide a safe environment. 

Unfortunately, as a consequence of the pandemic we took the difficult decision to restructure the business which 

involved a redundancy programme. In taking this decision the Board took into account the consequences to the 

business of the restructuring in the long term. The Board considered that the restructuring would promote the success 

of the company in the short and long term, but was careful to consider the interests of all employees when carrying out 

the restructuring.  

Employee Communications 

Effective communication is an important aspect of the relationship with our colleagues – particularly during the 

pandemic. We have introduced various new measures, such as our Listening Lunches, to communicate with our staff 

more effectively and importantly obtain their feedback so that we can not only update colleagues but also identify 

areas to improve the staff experience. 

Diversity and inclusion 

Vacancies are advertised both internally and externally and are filled following a robust evaluation of candidates who 

possess the required balance of skills, knowledge and experience. 

The Group operates an equal opportunities policy that aims to treat individuals fairly and not to discriminate in any 

way.  

Our Customers 

Like any business our customers are a key stakeholder for the Group. The pandemic saw an unprecedented number of 

businesses requesting support and JLA gave due consideration to our customers’ needs where appropriate. We also 

invested in our service delivery to ensure that we could continue to provide the same level of service to its customers 

despite the challenges of the pandemic. In addition, the Group took various steps to mitigate the impact of Brexit. 

These actions demonstrate the long term view taken by the Board in order to maintain the strong relationship that the 

Group enjoys with its customers. 
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s.172 Statement - Promoting the Success of the Company (continued) 

Our Suppliers  

We maintain close relationships with our suppliers to enable us to deliver market-leading products and services. 

Engaging with our supply chain means that we can ensure security of supply and has resulted in strong relationships 

spanning decades in some cases.  

This year we decided to partner with a nationally recognised logistics business to augment our supply chain so that we 

could focus more attention on the needs of our customers. This decision was taken to promote the success of the 

company and will have the benefit of strengthening relationships with our suppliers and our customers in the long 

term. 

The Environment 

We are continually aiming to be a more sustainable company. We are fully compliant with the Waste Electronic and 

Electronic Equipment (WEEE) Regulations which impose targets designed to encourage the reuse and recycling of 

electrical equipment. We have been awarded ISO 14001 certification, an environmental management system which 

enables us to measure and improve our environmental impact through an internationally recognised framework. 

We have instigated various programmes to reduce our environmental impact, including setting Co2 emissions targets 

for our vehicle fleet, reducing the size of our server estate and recycling products back into the marketplace where 

possible. 
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (“SECR”)  

Introduction and methodology 

This is the first year in which the Group is reporting energy and carbon emissions in accordance with the mandatory 

requirements of the Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting regulations (SECR). The compilation of this report is in 

line with the UK Government publication: ‘Environmental reporting guidelines: including Streamlined Energy and 

Carbon Reporting and greenhouse gas reporting’. 

The Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions associated with our core business operations have been measured and verified 

in accordance with SECR category guidance; Scope 1 (direct resource use), Scope 2 (bought resources for use in our 

direct operations) and specific Scope 3 emissions (indirect emissions due to business activities). We have also 

identified appropriate intensity ratios to normalise and monitor our carbon emissions and energy efficiency measures 

which support our drive to minimise costs and improve productivity whilst reducing carbon emissions in line with the 

UK’s target to bring all GHG emissions to net zero by 2050. 

The energy consumption of our core business operations has been calculated using proprietary software to process 

utility bills for our site and fleet data. Our carbon emissions have been calculated in accordance with guidance 

provided by the UK Government and the WRI GHG Reporting Protocol methodology. 

As our first SECR reporting year has occurred during the COVID-19 pandemic and lockdown period it will not be a 

suitable year to assign as a baseline year against which future energy saving measures are evaluated. We will therefore 

continue to monitor the baseline in future years and will develop a suitable baseline calculation methodology to 

account for business as usual levels of productivity. 

GHG emissions and energy usage data for the year ended 31 October 2020 

Energy consumption  

 2020 

 kWh 

Purchased electricity  651,283 

Combustion of gas 739,161 

LPG 12,824 

Transport fuel 14,648,234 
  

 16,051,502 

  

Carbon emissions  

 2020 

 teCO₂ₑ 

Scope one emissions  

Combustion of gas 136 

LPG 3 

Transport fuel 2,819 

Scope two emissions  

Purchased electricity – location based 13 

Scope three emissions  

Transport fuel 705 

  

Gross carbon emissions 3,676 

Additional scope three emissions  

Grid electricity transmission and distribution losses – location based 13 
  

Total annual net emissions 3,689 
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (“SECR”) (continued) 

The above table shows the Gross GHG emissions associated with our combined business operations during this initial 

SECR period were 3,676 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents (teCO₂ₑ). 96% of this amount was due to transportation 

attributable to our fleet of HGVs, vans, company cars, pool/hire cars and grey fleet. There is a requirement under 

SECR to report separate figures for grey fleet and we are currently developing an analysis model to process fuel card 

data in order to calculate this figure separately. For the purposes of our initial SECR report it has been assumed that 

grey fleet accounts for a fifth of the total transport emissions and this figure will be refined as our reporting systems 

are developed. The carbon emissions associated with the 7 buildings where we pay for the energy consumption 

account for less than 5% of our total footprint, indicating that our future carbon reduction strategy should be transport 

focused. 

We have chosen to expand the scope of our reporting to exceed the mandatory requirement by including emissions 

associated with the transmission of electricity to site. Our Net annual emissions have been calculated by adding this 

figure to the gross emissions and in future years we will look to subtract any carbon offsetting or renewable energy 

generation that we can procure as part of our wider sustainability goals. Under this optional methodology our gross 

annual emissions are 3,689 teCO₂ₑ. During the initial SECR period it is not a requirement to make a performance 

comparison against the previous year. The setting of a programme baseline datum will be reviewed in year 2 to 

account for reductions in business productivity resulting from COVID-19 restrictions. 

Intensity ratios 

Current government environmental reporting guidance recommends the development of at least 3 Key Performance 

Indicators (KPIs) associated with key environmental impacts. We have identified intensity ratios which divide our 

energy and carbon emissions by appropriate normalising factors to enable performance tracking over time and 

comparison against organisations operating in equivalent sectors, namely; 

Intensity ratio  

 2020 

Average carbon emissions per £100k revenue for the reporting period - teCO₂ₑ/£100,000 of 

revenue 9.85 

Average carbon emissions per full time employee - teCO₂ₑ/FTE 0.35 

Average total energy use per full time employee - kWh/FTE 1,672 

Average carbon emissions per metres squared of site area - teCO₂ₑ/m² 0.04 

  

We are also working to establish performance benchmarks for total energy efficiency within our buildings, having 

analysed the performance of our head office as being 184kWh/m2 with an associated carbon intensity of 0.04 

teCO2/m2. If this is indicative of our other building stock it would suggest our offices can be rated as performing at 

good practice for energy efficiency compared to industry benchmarks for standard air conditioned offices. 

Energy saving measures 

This financial year we have also complied with Phase 2 of the Government’s Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme 

(ESOS), requiring us to verify 100% of our energy usage baseline and identify energy saving opportunities across our 

estate and business operations. In order to meet this requirement energy audits were carried out at our Head Office, 

William Whitfield and Firebright premises. 

We have also begun initial conversations with energy consultants sourced from the Brightsourced organisation to 

develop a road map to achieve net zero GHG emissions ahead of the government’s 2050 legally binding deadline for 

achieving net zero. The output of planned further workshops in this area will include development of a road map to 

achieving net zero emissions for our organisations through identification and evaluation of options to achieve carbon 

reduction pathways across all core areas of our business activities. Emissions reductions would be achieved through 

optimising energy efficiency and de-carbonising our energy supply whilst considering recovery of energy from waste 

material and exploiting potential for low carbon de-centralised energy generation and storage. The strategy would also 

minimise or eliminate any ongoing operational cost to offset residual GHG emissions which cannot be eliminated or 

decarbonised and will seek to future proof our business for a zero carbon economy through adaptation of machine 

learning and AI systems to support process optimisation, asset management and energy focused maintenance across 

our assets. 
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Going concern 

The financial results of the Group and the future developments are discussed on pages 4, 5 and 6. 

The Group has net liabilities of £160.9 million (31 October 2019: £81.4 million), recorded a loss after taxation from 

continuing activities of £80.0 million (78-week period: £82.7 million) and recorded a net cash inflow of £20.5 million 

(78-week period: £11.0 million). Funding is provided to the company through intercompany loan movements. This 

intercompany debt is financed by profits and cash generated by fellow group subsidiaries as well as external 

borrowings. 

The Group has a £260,000,000 1st lien term loan, a £95,000,000 2nd lien term loan and a £50,000,000 revolving credit 

facility. The 1st lien term loan is due to be repaid on 15 August 2025, the 2nd lien term loan is due to be repaid on 15 

August 2026 and any drawn balance on the revolving credit facility is due to be repaid on 15 August 2024. 

On 28 February 2020, the group secured additional loan facilities to its 1st and 2nd lien term loans. A £30,000,000 

Facility B2 Senior loan was secured and fully drawn on the same terms as the 1st lien term loan, repayable on 15 

August 2025. A £10,000,000 Facility B2 Second Lien was secured and fully drawn on the same basis as the 2nd lien 

term loan, repayable on 15 August 2026. 

On 28 February 2020, the group secured a new Acquisition & Capex Facility (“ACF”) of £40,000,000, which can be 

used to refinance existing bank debt, acquisitions or capital expenditure. The ACF was secured on the same terms as 

the 1st lien term loan. The ACF is available to draw until 28 August 2022, with any drawn balance repayable on 15 

August 2025.  

At 31 October 2020, the Group had utilised £50 million (31 October 2019: £23 million) of the revolving credit facility 

and had drawn £15 million (31 October 2019: £nil) of the ACF. The senior facilities term loans are fully drawn down. 

The term loan facilities are secured by fixed and floating charges over a number of the Group’s subsidiaries. The 

interest rate payable on the 1st lien term loan & Facility B2 Senior loan represents a 4.00% margin above LIBOR, the 

PIK interest rate on the 2nd lien term loan & Facility B2 Second Lien loan represents a 7.00% margin above LIBOR 

and the interest rate payable on the revolving credit facility, whenever it is utilised, represents a 2.75% margin above 

LIBOR.  

The Group has considerable financial resources, together with forecast cash generation from operations, which will 

enable the business to drive forward and execute strategic plans for future growth. See above for impact of COVID19 

and actions taken. Management has performed stress testing on forecasts, which show the Group has sufficient 

liquidity, and mitigating measures available, to continue to operate in the event of a significant economic downturn. 

As a consequence, the directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite 

the current uncertain economic outlook. After making appropriate enquiries, and reviewing the Group forecasts which 

cover a period exceeding 12 months from the date of signature of the financial statements, the directors have a 

reasonable expectation that the company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence 

for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they have adopted the going concern basis in preparing the report and 

financial statements. 

The Group’s controlling party, Cinven Partners, is a UK private equity fund. Accordingly, the Annual Report and 

Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Walker Guidelines for UK companies in private 

equity ownership.  

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board 

 

 
 

D Tanase 

Director 

25 February 2021 
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The director’s present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 October 

2020.   

Principal activities 

These accounts include all of the Company’s transactions for the accounting year ended 31 October 2020.   

The majority shareholder in the Company is the Sixth Cinven Fund. The partnerships comprising the Sixth Cinven 

Fund are established in Guernsey and are managed and controlled by Cinven Capital Management (VI) General 

Partner Limited. Approximately 26.5% of the Sixth Cinven Fund’s investment is held through two Luxembourg 

sociétés en commandite spéciales: SixthCinven FD 1 Lux SCSp and Sixth Cinven FD 2 Lux SCSp (together, the 

“SCSp vehicles”). The SCSp vehicles are both managed by their general partner (associé commandité), Cinven Lux 

GP (VI) S.a.r.l. 

The Group accounts reflect all the transactions of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the accounting 

year ended 31 October 2020.   

The principal activities of the Group focus on critical asset solutions for a range of customers and comprise the long-

term hire, supply and maintenance of laundry, catering, heating and fire safety equipment and the supply of managed 

launderettes.  

The principal activity of the company was as an investment holding and financing company. 

Directors 

The directors who served during the period and subsequently were: 

Directors 

R Neeson (Cinven Partners) (appointed 11 May 2018) 

D Tanase (Cinven Partners) (appointed 28 November 2019) 

S Rajagopalan     (Cinven Partners) (resigned 28 November 2019) 

Lord J Birt (appointed 15 August 2018) 

P Humphreys (resigned 31 December 2019) 

H Ashton (resigned 28 September 2020) 

B Gujral (appointed 1 January 2020) 

 

Results and dividends 

The consolidated income statement is set out on page 20 and shows the loss for the period. 

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend. 

Employee engagement 

The company has established communication channels to ensure employees are appraised of company news and can 

share their views. The culture promotes open and honest two-way communication and is continually seeking to 

improve the way it engages with employees.  

Equal opportunities 

The Group is committed to equal opportunity for all. It has robust policies setting out its approach in this regard and 

these are supported by embedded processes to eliminate bias in the selection and management of employees. The 

Chief People Officer has a responsibility for delivering the Equal Opportunities agenda and for promoting diversity 

and inclusion across the Group.  
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Provision of information to the auditor 

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that: 

 so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is 

unaware; and 

 the director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of 

any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that information. 

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of the Companies (Jersey) Law 

1991. 

Going concern, financial risk management objectives and policies and carbon reporting 

The directors set out in the Strategic report:  

 the reasoning for the adoption of the going concern basis in preparing the report and financial statements for 

the company; 

 the financial risk management objectives and policies of the company; and 

 their carbon reporting and energy consumption reporting obligations. 

Future developments 

Refer to details in the strategic report on page 6. 

Auditor 

Deloitte LLP resigned in the year and BDO LLP were appointed as the Group’s auditor.  BDO LLP have expressed 

their willingness to continue in office as auditor and a resolution to reappoint them will be proposed at the 

forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

Ultimate parent company and parent undertaking of a larger group 

The largest and smallest group in which the results of the Company were consolidated was that headed by JLA 

Acquisitions Topco Limited, which is incorporated in Jersey.  

The majority shareholder in the Company is the Sixth Cinven Fund. The partnerships comprising the Sixth Cinven 

Fund are established in Guernsey and are managed and controlled by Cinven Capital Management (VI) General 

Partner Limited. Approximately 26.5% of the Sixth Cinven Fund’s investment is held through two Luxembourg 

sociétés en commandite spéciales: SixthCinven FD 1 Lux SCSp and Sixth Cinven FD 2 Lux SCSp (together, the 

“SCSp vehicles”). The SCSp vehicles are both managed by their general partner (associé commandité), Cinven Lux 

GP (VI) S.a.r.l. 

 

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board 

 

 
 

D Tanase 

Director 

25 February 2021 

 

Registered office: Aztec Financial Services (Jersey) Limited, 11-15 Seaton Place, St Helier, Jersey, JE4 0QH. 

Registered in Jersey No. 12639 
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The directors are responsible for preparing the Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law 

and regulations. 

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.  Under that law the 

directors have elected to prepare the group and company financial statements in accordance international accounting 

standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Under company law the directors 

must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of 

affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the group and company for that period.  

International Accounting Standard requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial period the 

company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows.  This requires the faithful representation of the 

effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for 

assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the International Accounting Standards Board's 'Framework for the 

preparation and presentation of financial statements'.  In virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation will be 

achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRSs.  However, directors are also required to: 

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to: 

 properly select and apply accounting policies; 

 present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and 

understandable information;  

 provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable 

users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial 

position and financial performance; and 

 make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern. 

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 

the financial position of the group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies 

(Jersey) Law 1991. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and hence for taking reasonable 

steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.  

 

 



Independent auditor’s report to the members of JLA Acquisitions Topco 

Limited 

 

17 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of JLA Acquisitions Topco Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 31 

October 2020  which comprise the the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive 

income, the consolidated and parent company statement of financial position, the consolidated and parent company 

statements of changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements, including a 

summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their 

preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards. 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 October 2020 and of its loss for the year 

then ended; 

 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards; and 

 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 

law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of 

the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard 

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report 

to you where: 

 the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not 

appropriate; or 

 

 the Directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast 

significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a 

period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 
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Other information 

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 

the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial 

statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we 

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 

inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material 

misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we 

have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 

that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 requires us to 

report to you if, in our opinion: 

 proper accounting records have not been kept, or proper returns adequate for our audit have not been received 

from branches not visited by us; or 

 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

 

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 

Responsibilities of directors  

As explained more fully in the Directors responsibilities statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of 

the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and for such internal control as the 

Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 

a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic 

alternative but to do so.  

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 

Reporting Council’s website at: https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our 

auditor’s report.  

https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Article 113A of the Companies 

(Jersey) Law 1991. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those 

matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted 

by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as 

a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 

 

 

 

 

Gary Harding (Senior Statutory Auditor) 

For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor 

Manchester, United Kingdom 

        February 2021 

 

 

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).

25



JLA Acquisitions Topco Limited 

 

 

Consolidated income statement 

Year ended 31 October 2020 

20 

 

 

Notes  

2020 

£’000 

78 week period 

11 May 2018 to 

31 October 2019 

£’000 
     

Revenue 5  137,384 170,349 

     

Cost of sales   (63,218) (77,092) 

   
  

Gross profit   74,166 93,257 

     

Administrative expenses   (38,316) (42,530) 

     

Operating profit before depreciation, intangible asset 

amortisation, loss on disposal of fixed assets and separately 

disclosed operating items 
  

35,850 

 

50,727 

 

Depreciation 6  (14,756) (14,989) 

Intangible asset amortisation 6  (19,552) (20,844) 

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 6  (1,311) (2,280) 

Separately disclosed items 6  (18,380) (26,552) 

IFRS 2 share based payment charge 27  (17) - 
     

     

Operating loss 6  (18,166) (13,938) 

     

Finance costs 10  (69,397) (74,478) 
     

Loss before tax 5-10  (87,563) (88,416) 

     

Tax on loss  11  7,541 5,715 

     
     

Loss from continuing operations    (80,022) (82,701) 
     

     

Profit from discontinued operations 12  - 716 

     
     

Loss for the period    (80,022) (81,985) 
     

Loss is attributable to:     

Owners of JLA Acquisitions Topco Limited   (80,035) (82,125) 

Non-controlling interests   13 140 

   
  

   (80,022) (81,985) 

   
  

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated income statement. Included within the results for the 

period are acquisitions which contributed £8,052,000 (2019: £170,349,000) to revenue, £4,835,000 (2019: 

£77,092,000) to cost of sales, £2,842,000 (2019: £42,530,000) to administrative expenses and an operating loss of 

£549,000 (2019: £13,257,000). 
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Notes 

2020 

£’000 

78 week period 

11 May 2018 to 

31 October 

2019 

£’000      

Loss for the period   (80,022) (81,985) 
     

     

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss     

     

Transfer on maturity of acquired hedged items   481 (37) 

Effective portion of changes in fair value of current cash flow 

hedges  24 (40) (481) 

Deferred tax charge on origination and reversal of timing 

differences  11 
75  (82) 

   
  

Total comprehensive expense for the period   (79,506) (82,585) 

   
  

Total comprehensive expense for the period is attributable to: 
  

  

Owners of JLA Acquisitions Topco Limited   (79,519)    (82,725) 

Non-controlling interests   13 140 

   
  

   (79,506) (82,585) 

   
  

Total comprehensive expense for the period attributable to the 

owners of JLA Acquisitions Topco Limited arises from:   
  

Continuing operations   (79,506) (83,301) 

Discontinued operations   - 716 

   
  

   (79,506) (82,585) 
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Notes 

31 October 2020 

£’000 

31 October 2019 

£’000 
     

Non-current assets     

Goodwill  13 413,226 405,894 

Intangible assets  14 179,361 183,598 

Property, plant and equipment  15 81,788 71,691 

Deferred tax asset  25 - 7,683 

   
  

   674,375 668,866 

Current assets     

Inventories  18 11,597 11,488 

Trade and other receivables  19 34,969 23,552 

Cash and bank balances   31,496 10,989 

   
  

   78,062 46,029 

   
  

Total assets   752,437 714,895 

   
  

Current liabilities     

Trade and other payables  20 (40,705) (42,990) 

Current tax liabilities   (736) (257) 

Lease liabilities  21 (2,461) - 

Borrowings  22 (287) (1,237) 

Obligations under finance leases  23 - (701) 

Derivative financial instruments  24 (40) (481) 

   
  

   (44,229) (45,666) 

   
  

Net current assets   33,833 363 

   
  

Non-current liabilities     

Borrowings  22 (846,740) (718,172) 

Lease liabilities  21 (4,249) - 

Obligations under finance leases  23 - (2,020) 

Deferred tax liability  25 (18,165) (30,433) 

   
  

   (869,154) (750,625) 

   
  

Total liabilities   (913,383) (796,291) 

   
  

Net liabilities   (160,946) (81,396) 
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Notes 

31 October 2020 

£’000 

31 October 2019 

£’000 
     

Equity     

Called up share capital - nominal  26 13 13 

Share premium  26 974 954 

Treasury shares reserve  28 (81) - 

Hedging reserve  28 (84) (600) 

Retained earnings  28 (162,143) (82,125) 

   
  

Equity attributable to the owners of the company   (161,321) (81,758) 

Non-controlling interests   375 362 

   
  

Total deficit   (160,946) (81,396) 

   
  

 

The financial statements of JLA Acquisitions Topco Limited registered number 126391 were approved by the Board 

of Directors on 25 February 2021.    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated income statement.  

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

D Tanase 

Director 
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Notes 

31 October 2020 

£’000 

31 October 2019 

£’000 

Non-current assets     

Investments  16 10,428 10,428 

Amounts owed by group undertakings  19 379,187 341,654 

Deferred tax asset  25 - 104 

   
  

   389,615 352,186 

Current assets     

Other receivables  19 5 15 

Cash and bank balances   61 41 
  

 
  

   66 56 

   
  

Total assets   389,681 352,242 

   
  

Current liabilities 
 

 
  

Amounts owed to group undertakings  20 (2,750) (677) 

Current tax liabilities   (5) - 
 

 

 

  

   (2,755) (677) 

   
  

Net current liabilities   (2,689) (621) 

   
  

Non-current liabilities     

Borrowings  22 (395,790) (353,506) 

   
  

Total liabilities   (398,545) (354,183) 

   
  

Net liabilities   (8,864) (1,941) 

   
  

Equity     

Called up share capital - nominal  26 13 13 

Share premium  26 974 954 

Retained earnings – result for the period  28 (9,851) (2,908) 

   
  

Equity attributable to the owners of the company   (8,864) (1,941) 

   
  

The company has taken advantage of the exemption contained within section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to 

present its own Income Statement. The loss for the period dealt with in the financial statements of the company was 

£6,960,000 (2019: £2,908,000). 

The financial statements of JLA Acquisitions Topco Limited registered number 126391 were approved by the Board 

of Directors on 25 February 2021. 

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

D Tanase 

Director 
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  Note 

Share 

capital 

£’000 

Share 

premium 

£’000 

Treasury 

shares 

reserve 

£’000 

Hedging 

reserve 

£’000 

Retained 

earnings 

£’000 

Non-

controlling 

interests 

£’000 

Total 

£’000 

          

Balance at 11 May 2018   - - - - - - - 

          

Subscription of ordinary 

share capital on 

incorporation 

 

26 11 911 - - - - 922 

Share capital issued during 

period 

 
26 2 43 - - - - 45 

Non-controlling interests 

on acquisition of 

subsidiary 

 

 - - - - - 222 222 

(Loss)/profit for the period   28 - - - - (82,125) 140 (81,985) 

Other comprehensive 

expense  

 
28 - - - (600) - - (600) 

   
       

Total comprehensive 

(expense) for the period 

 
 - - - (600) (82,125) 140 (82,585) 

   
       

Balance at 31 October 

2019 
  13 954 - (600) (82,125) 362 (81,396) 

          

Shares issued  26 - 20 - - - - 20 

Shares bought by employee 

benefit trust 

 
28 - - (81) - - - (81) 

          

(Loss)/profit for the period   28 - - - - (80,035) 13 (80,022) 

Other comprehensive 

income 
  - - - 516 - - 516 

IFRS 2 share based 

payments 
 27 - - - - 17 - 17 

   
       

Total comprehensive 

income/(expense) for 

the year 

 

 - - - 516 (80,018) 13 (79,489) 

   
       

Balance at 31 October 

2020 
  13 974 (81) (84) (162,143) 375 (160,946) 

   
       

 

The other comprehensive income for the period is comprised of the effective portion of changes in fair value of current cash flow hedges, 

and the deferred tax on the change in fair value of the cash flow hedges, totalling £0.4 million (2019: £0.6 million), as detailed in note 24. 
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  Note 

Share capital 

£’000 

Share 

premium 

£’000 

Retained 

earnings 

£’000 

Total 

£’000 

       

Balance at 11 May 2018   - - - - 

       

Subscription of ordinary share capital on 

incorporation  
26 11 911 - 922 

Share capital issued during period  26 2 43 - 45 

Loss for the period   - - (2,908) (2,908) 

   
    

Balance at 31 October 2019   13 954 (2,908) (1,941) 

Shares issued   - 20 - 20 

Loss for the period   - - (6,960) (6,960) 

IFRS 2 share based payments   - - 17 17 

   
    

Balance at 31 October 2020   13 974 (9,851) (8,864) 
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 Notes  

2020 

£’000 

11 May 

2018 to 

31 October 

2019 

£’000 
     
     

Cash flows from operating activities     

Net cash from operating activities 29  8,401 29,630 

Interest paid   (21,698) - 

Taxation 30  (392) (507) 

     

Net cash from operating activities   (13,689) 29,123 

     

Cash flows from investing activities     

Investing activities 30  (39,215) (152,200) 

     

Cash outflow before financing   (52,904) (123,077) 

     

Cash flows from financing activities     

Financing activities 30  73,411 134,066 

     

Increase in cash in the period 31  20,507 10,989 
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1. General information 

JLA Acquisitions Topco Limited (the Company) is a private company limited by shares incorporated in Jersey 

under the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. The address of the registered office is given on page 2. The company 

is domiciled in Jersey but is centrally managed and controlled in the United Kingdom and is therefore 

considered to be UK tax resident. The principal activities of the company and its subsidiaries (the group) and 

the nature of the group's operations are set out on page 3 and in the strategic report on pages 3 to 13. 

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which the group operates.  Foreign operations are included in accordance with the 

policies set out in note 3. 

2. Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations effective for the year ended 31 

October 2020  

In the current year, the Group has applied standards and amendments to published standards issued by the 

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are mandatorily effective for the year ended 31 October 

2020. 

Previously, the group had consolidated under IAS 17. For the accounting period ended 31 October 2020, IFRS 

16 replaced this standard using the modified retrospective approach, and has accounted for the related balances 

solely under this new standard. 

 IFRS 16 – Leases 

The group has applied IFRS 16 retrospectively to all leases, but has elected to recognise the cumulative effect 

against opening reserves at 1 November 2019. Therefore, the comparative figures are as previously reported 

under IAS 17. The group has applied this approach subject to the transition provisions set out below: 

 For all contracts that existed prior to 1 November 2019, the group has not applied IFRS 16 to reassess 

whether each contract is, or contains, a lease. 

 A single discount rate has been applied to portfolios of leases with similar characteristics. 

 The right-of-use assets have not been assessed for impairment at 1 November 2019, but have been reduced 

by the amount of any onerous lease provisions at that date. 

 Initial direct costs have been excluded from the measurement of the right-of-use assets. 

 Hindsight has been applied in determining the lease term for contracts that contain lease extension or 

termination options. 

Policy applicable for FY 20 and onwards 

The group recognises the right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. Right of use 

(“ROU”) assets represent right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent 

obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. 

ROU assets are initially measured at commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over 

the lease term plus any initial direct cost and an estimate of asset retirement obligation. The ROU asset is 

subsequently depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease 

term. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of lease payments that are not paid at 

commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the 

measurement of the lease liability comprise fixed payments, variable lease payments that depend on an index, 

initially measured using the index as at the commencement date and fixed nature non-lease components. 
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2.  Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations effective for the year ended 31 

October 2020 (continued) 

The lease liability is subsequently increased by interest expense computed based on discount rates used for 

initially measuring the liability and reduced by lease payments. The lease liability is remeasured when there is a 

change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index with a corresponding adjustment made to the 

carrying amount of the ROU asset. 

When the value of the underlying asset (if new) at 1 November 2019 is £5,000 or less, the Group has continued 

to recognise the lease payments associated with those leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

When the lease term ends before 31 October 2020, the Group has continued to recognise the lease payments 

associated with those leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Policy for finance leases under IFRS 16 

The carrying amount of the lease liability and ROU asset at 1 November 2019 are measured under IAS 17. 

IFRS 16 is applied thereafter. 

 Policies applicable for the comparative period 

Operating leases 

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group as 

leases are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of incentives received from 

lessors) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 

Operating lease incentives, in the form of rent free periods or support for fit out costs, are recognised on a 

straight line basis, as a reduction of the rental expense over the full lease term. 

Leasing and hire purchase 

Assets funded through finance leases and similar hire purchase contracts are capitalised as property, plant 

and equipment where the group assumes substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Upon 

initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at the lower of its fair value and the present value of the 

minimum lease payments. Future instalments under such leases, net of financing costs, are included within 

interest-bearing loans and borrowings. 

Rental payments are apportioned between the finance element, which is included in finance costs, and the 

capital element which reduces the outstanding obligation for future instalments so as to give a constant 

charge on the outstanding obligation. 

Premia paid to acquire leases are initially deferred and subsequently amortised to the Consolidated income 

statement over the life of the lease. 
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2.  Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations effective for the year ended 31 

October 2020 (continued) 

Standards and Interpretations which have not been applied in these financials statements 

There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been issued by the 

IASB that are effective in future accounting periods that the group has decided not to adopt early. 

 

The following amendments are effective for the period beginning 1 January 2022: 

 

 Onerous Contracts Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) 

 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) 

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and      

IAS 41) 

 References to Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) 

 

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1, which clarify the criteria used to determine whether 

liabilities are classified as current or non-current. These amendments clarify that current or non-current 

classification is based on whether an entity has a right at the end of the reporting period to defer settlement of 

the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. The amendments also clarify that ‘settlement’ 

includes the transfer of cash, goods, services, or equity instruments unless the obligation to transfer equity 

instruments arises from a conversion feature classified as an equity instrument separately from the liability 

component of a compound financial instrument. The amendments were originally effective for annual reporting 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. However, in May 2020, the effective date was deferred to annual 

reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. 

  

JLA Acquisitions Topco Limited is currently assessing the impact of these new accounting standards and 

amendments. The Group does not believe that the amendments to IAS 1 will have a significant impact on the 

classification of its liabilities, as it does not have convertible debt instruments.  

  

The Group does not expect any other standards issued by the IASB, but not yet effective, to have a material 

impact on the group. 

 

3. Accounting policies 

Basis of preparation of financial statements 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with International 

Accounting Standards and Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.  These policies have been consistently applied to all 

the years presented. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs generally requires the 

use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the 

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Although 

these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results 

ultimately may differ from those estimates. 

The company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 (Financial Reporting 

Standard 101) ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ as issued by the Financial Reporting Council. As permitted by 

FRS 101, the company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard in 

relation to business combinations, financial instruments, fair value measurements, presentation of a cash-flow 

statement, standards not yet effective, impairment of assets and related party transactions. 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial instruments that 

are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the 

accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in 

exchange for goods and services.  
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3. Accounting policies (continued) 

Basis of preparation of financial statements (continued) 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly 

observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, 

the group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those 

characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.  

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a 

basis, except for measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net 

realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.  

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based 

on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the 

inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:  

 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 

entity can access at the measurement date; 

 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.  

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.  

Accounting reference date 

The accounting period of the company and group ends on the Friday falling between 28 October and 3 

November each year but are always reported as at 31 October. 

Basis of consolidation 

The group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of JLA Acquisitions Topco Limited and all 

of its subsidiary undertakings ('subsidiaries') drawn up to the relevant accounting date each October. 

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the group obtains 

control, and continue to be consolidated until the date such control ceases.  Control comprises the power to 

govern the financial and operating policies of the investee so as to obtain benefit from its activities and is 

achieved through direct or indirect ownership of voting rights; currently exercisable or convertible potential 

voting rights; or by way of contractual agreement. The financial statements of subsidiaries used in the 

preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent 

company and are based on consistent accounting policies. All inter-company balances and transactions, 

including unrealised profits arising from them, are eliminated. 

The group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the company and its subsidiary 

undertakings drawn up to 31 October each period. The results of subsidiaries acquired or sold are consolidated 

for the periods from or to the date on which control passed.  

Employee Benefit Trusts (“EBTs”) are accounted for under IFRS 10 and are consolidated on the basis that the 

parent has control, thus the assets and liabilities of the EBT are included on the consolidated statement of 

financial position and shares held by the EBT in the company are presented as a deduction from equity under a 

treasury shares reserve. 
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3. Accounting policies (continued) 

Going concern 

The group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance 

and position are set out in the strategic report. The strategic report also describes the group's objectives, 

policies and processes for managing its capital; its financial risk management objectives; details of its financial 

instruments and hedging activities; and its exposure to credit risk and liquidity risk. 

Whilst the group has net liabilities, the group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible 

changes in trading performance and the long term nature of the group facilities, show that the group should be 

able to operate within the level of its current facilities. See also Strategic Report. A significant portion of the 

group's net debt is repayable after four years and the group is able to meet its short term debt requirements out 

of operating cash flows. 

The group has considerable financial resources, together with significant forecast cash generation from 

operations. Management has performed stress testing on forecasts, which show the group has sufficient 

liquidity, and mitigating measures available, to continue to operate in the event of a significant economic 

downturn. As a consequence, the directors believe that the group is well placed to manage its business risks 

successfully despite the current uncertain economic outlook. After making appropriate enquiries, and reviewing 

the group forecasts which cover a period exceeding 12 months from the date of signature of the financial 

statements, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company and the group have adequate 

resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, taking into account reasonably 

possible changes in trading. 

Please see the going concern section of the strategic report on page 13 for further details on the considerations 

made with regards to the going concern basis of accounting adopted. 

Business combinations 

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group is 

exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect 

those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the 

date on which control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. 

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration 

transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the 

acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred by the group, liabilities incurred by the group to the former 

owners of the acquiree and the equity interest issued by the group in exchange for control of the acquiree. 

Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated 

income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of 

financial position respectively. 

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair 

value at the acquisition date, except that: 

 deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are 

recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits 

respectively; and 

 assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current 

Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard. 

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-

controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the 

acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the 

liabilities assumed.  
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3. Accounting policies (continued) 

Business combinations (continued) 

If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities 

assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the 

acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is 

recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.  

When the consideration transferred by the group in a business combination includes asset or liability resulting 

from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date 

fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination.  

Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are 

adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments 

are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot 

exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date. 

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as 

measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent 

consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent 

settlement is accounted for within equity.  

Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates 

at fair value with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. 

Discontinued operations 

The group presents operations as discontinued operations where the sale or termination is completed either in 

the period or is expected within twelve months of the reporting date. The associated assets of the disposal 

group are presented separately as assets held for sale in the statement of financial position. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill is initially recognised and measured as set out above. 

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment 

testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the group’s cash-generating units expected to benefit from the 

synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for 

impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.  

If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the 

impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then 

to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An 

impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. 

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of 

the profit or loss on disposal. 

Investments 

Fixed asset investments are shown at cost less provision for impairment. 
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3. Accounting policies (continued) 

Intangible fixed assets and amortisation 

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets acquired in a business 

combination are measured at their fair value at the date of acquisition and, following initial recognition are 

carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated 

intangibles, excluding internally developed software, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected 

in the income statement in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Estimated useful lives and 

amortisation rates are as follows: 

Goodwill - indefinite life 

Contracts - 11 years straight-line 

Customer relationships - 8 years straight-line 

Software - 5 years straight-line 

Technology - 7 years straight-line 

Marketing - 15 years straight-line 

 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic life on a basis appropriate to the 

consumption of the asset and are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible 

asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a 

finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.  

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits 

embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are 

treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is 

recognised in the income statement within administrative expenses. 

Customer relationships acquired as part of acquisition businesses are capitalised separately from goodwill as 

intangible assets if their value can be measured reliably on initial recognition and it is probable that the 

expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the group. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either 

individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to 

determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from 

indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income statement when the 

asset is de-recognised. 
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3. Accounting policies (continued) 

Impairment of assets 

The group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 

such indication exists, or when the annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the group makes an 

estimate of the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash 

generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, 

unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or 

groups of assets.  

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired 

and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 

are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the 

time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

Impairment losses on continuing operations are recognised in the income statement in those expense 

categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised 

impairment losses may no longer exist or may have increased. If such indication exists, the recoverable 

amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in 

the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. 

If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased 

amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no 

impairment loss been recognised for the asset. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss. After such a 

reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, 

less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

Property, plant and equipment 

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 

losses. Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful economic lives, they 

are accounted for as separate items. 

Depreciation is charged to the Consolidated Income Statement over the estimated useful life of each part of 

an item of property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful economic lives and depreciation rates are as 

follows: 

Freehold property - 50 years straight-line 

Leasehold improvements - 5 years straight-line 

Plant and machinery - 8 - 12 years straight-line 

Motor vehicles -          4 years straight-line 

Fixtures and fittings -          3-8 years straight-line 

Right-of-use assets -          over life of the lease 

 

Inventories 

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after due regard for obsolete and slow moving 

stocks. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method and includes expenditure incurred in bringing the 

inventory to its present location and condition and in the case of goods purchased from overseas includes an 

appropriate element of freight and duty charges.  

Net realisable value is based on selling price less anticipated sales and distribution costs. Inventory is 

recognised when the economic benefits and risks associated with the goods have substantially transferred to the 

group. 
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3. Accounting policies (continued) 

Derivative financial instruments 

The group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risks arising from 

operational activities. The group does not hedge account its interest rate cap products. In accordance with its 

treasury policy, the group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. 

However, derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments. 

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value and re-measured at each period end. The 

gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Income Statement. 

Forward foreign currency and interest rate hedging contracts are recognised at fair value in the Consolidated 

Statement of Financial Position with movements in fair value recognised in the Consolidated Income 

Statement for the period.  

The fair value of forward foreign currency contracts is the gain or loss that would result if the agreements were 

terminated at the reporting date, taking into account current foreign currency rates. 

Derivatives are presented as assets when the fair values are positive and as liabilities when the fair values are 

negative. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of 

the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months. 

Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the group's Statement of Financial Position when the 

group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognised 

when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or are transferred. Financial 

liabilities are de recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

Financial assets 

The group's financial assets are all categorised as loans and receivables with the exception of derivative 

financial instruments which are categorised as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Loans and 

receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 

active market. The group's loans and receivables comprise 'Trade and other receivables' and 'Cash and cash 

equivalents' in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise short-term cash deposits with major United Kingdom clearing banks 

earning floating rates of interest based upon bank base rates or rates linked to LIBOR. 

Financial liabilities 

The group's financial liabilities are all categorised as other financial liabilities. Other financial liabilities, with 

the exception of foreign exchange forward contracts, forward interest rate swaps and interest rate caps, are 

measured at amortised cost.  Foreign exchange forward contracts, forward interest rate swaps and interest rate 

caps are measured at fair value.  The group's other financial liabilities comprise 'Interest-bearing loans and 

borrowings' and 'Trade and other payables' and are measured at amortised cost. 

Estimation of fair values 

For trade and other receivables/payables, the notional amount is deemed to reflect the fair value. 

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently remeasured at their fair value.  The method of recognising any resulting gain or loss depends on 
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. 

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are 
recognised immediately in the income statement. 
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3. Accounting policies (continued) 

Hedge accounting 

The group designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives, embedded derivatives and non 

derivatives in respect of foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. Hedges of 

foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges. 

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging 

instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking 

various hedge transactions.  

Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the group documents whether the hedging 

instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item. 

Note 24 sets out details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes.  

Movements in the hedging reserve in equity are shown in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. 

Cashflow hedges 

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow 

hedges is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is 

recognised immediately in profit or loss, and is included in the 'other gains and losses' line item. 

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified 

to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss, in the same line of the 

income statement as the recognised hedged item. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged 

results in the recognition of a nonfinancial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously 

accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the 

non-financial asset or non-financial liability. 

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument 

expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss 

recognised in Other Comprehensive Income at that time is accumulated in equity and is recognised when 

the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement.  

When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is 

recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

Fair value hedges 

Changes in the fair values of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in 

the income statement, together with any changes in the fair values of the hedged assets or liabilities that are 

attributable to the hedged risk. 

Fair value hierarchy 

At 31 October 2020, the group held effective hedge accounted swap contracts on the Consolidated Statement 
of Financial Position.  
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3. Accounting policies (continued) 

Fair value hierarchy (continued) 

The group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments 
by valuation technique: 

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value 
are observable, either directly or indirectly 

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are 

not based on observable market data. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and deposits with an original maturity of three months 

or less. Bank overdrafts are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, as these are used as an integral part of the group's cash 

management. 

Trade and other payables 

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are stated at their cost.  

Financial expenses and capitalisation of issue costs of finance 

Financial expenses comprise interest payable on interest-bearing loans and borrowings. Financial expenses 
are recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement on an effective interest method. 

Issue costs of finance are netted against the loan finance to which they relate. These costs are allocated to the 

consolidated income statement over the term of the loan finance facility at the constant rate on the carrying 

value. 

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 

All borrowings are stated at the fair value of consideration received after deduction of issue costs. 

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent 

to their initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method, less any impairment losses. 

Revenue recognition 

The revenue shown in the income statement represents the amounts of goods and services provided during the 

period, stated net of value added tax.  
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3. Accounting policies (continued) 

Revenue recognition (continued) 

Distribution and service  

COMS contracted revenue relates to the provision of breakdown cover on equipment owned by a third party. 

This is a subscription revenue model that has a fixed fee. Revenue is recognised over the term of the contract. 

COMS Reactive and Compliance are non-contractual revenue streams. The delivery of the service is an 

individual discrete event at a point in time. Revenue is recognised at the completion of the event for instance 

repair of the machine or completion of the engineer callout event. 

Product, machines, parts and consumables revenue arises from delivery of the service is an individual discrete 

event at a point in time. Revenue is recognised at the completion of the event for instance delivery of the 

machine, part or consumable. 

Contracted Installations revenue is recognised as work is performed. Applications for payment are raised 

periodically and sent to the customer, charging for the work completed on a longer term contract. Applications 

for payment are raised in line with the agreed contracts and reflect work performed out on site. Revenue is 

recognised in line with the applications raised. 

Machine rental 

On-Premise Total Care is subscription revenue, on an operating lease arrangement, with a service element 

incorporated in a single, typically monthly, recurring payment. The Group have concluded the provision of 

specialist market leading commercial equipment, regular servicing and fully inclusive breakdown cover over 

the contracted lease term represents a single identifiable performance obligation. Revenue is recognised over 

the term of the lease. 

Managed income  

Vend Share Total Care is based on long term usage contracts. Revenue is determined by cash takings based on 

usage at sites and electronic top-up cards and app based technology, where usage is determined by cycle 

counts. Revenue is recognised based on usage. 

Taxation 

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

The company is registered in Jersey but is not subject to Jersey income tax and withholding tax, as it is 

resident in the United Kingdom due to its business being centrally managed and controlled there. 

Current tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as 

reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or 

deductible in other periods and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The group’s 

liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 

balance sheet date. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 

taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are 

generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent 

that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be 

utilised.  

Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of 

goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities 

in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 
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3. Accounting policies (continued) 

Taxation (continued) 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in 

subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the group is able to control the 

reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the 

foreseeable future.  

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and 

interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits 

against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the 

foreseeable future. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent 

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to 

be recovered. 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled 

or the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 

balance sheet date.  

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or 

credited in other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in other 

comprehensive income. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from 

the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying 

amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax 

assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 

authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

Current tax and deferred tax for the period 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised 

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.  

Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect 

is included in the accounting for the business combination. 

Pensions 

The group operates a defined contribution pension scheme and the pension charge represents the amounts 

payable by the company to the fund in respect of the period. Differences between contribution payable in the 

period and those actually paid are included in accruals or prepayments on the balance sheet.  
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3. Accounting policies (continued) 

Share based payment transactions 

The group operates an equity-settled share-based compensation plan through an employee benefit trust. 

The fair value of the employee services received under such schemes is recognised as an expense in the income 

statement. Fair values are determined by use of an appropriate pricing model, in this case the Black Scholes 

model, and incorporate an assessment of relevant market conditions where appropriate. 

The amount to be expensed over the vesting period is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the 

related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately 

recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that meet the related service and non-market 

performance conditions (where applicable) at the vesting date. 

At each statement of financial position date, the group revises its estimates of the number of share incentives 

that are expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the 

income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. 

Foreign currency 

The individual financial statements of each group company are presented in the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated 

financial statements, the results and financial position of each group company are expressed in pound sterling, 

which is the functional currency of the company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial 

statements. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. Monetary 

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of 

exchange prevailing at that date. Exchange differences arising from the retranslation of monetary items forming 

part of the net investment in a foreign operation are recognised in the consolidated statement of total 

recognised gains and losses. All other exchange differences are included in the consolidated income statement. 

Separately disclosed items 

The income statement includes certain additional line items which do not qualify as non-recurring, but which 

the directors nevertheless believe warrant separate disclosure due to their size and non-trading nature. 

Separately disclosed items are those items that are unusual because of their size, nature or incidence, which the 

directors consider should be disclosed separately on the face of the consolidated income statement in order to 

enable a full understanding of the group's results. The directors consider that this presentation gives a more 

accurate presentation of the results of the group. 

Acquisition costs 

Acquisition costs and other deal related costs are expensed as incurred to the Income Statement. 
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In the application of the group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the directors are required 

to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not 

readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 

experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 

are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the 

period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

Critical judgements in applying the group’s accounting policies 

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimation (which are dealt with 

separately below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies and 

that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements. 

Impairment of goodwill 

The group is required to perform a review of the carrying value of goodwill annually to ensure that it is less 

than the recoverable amount. This assessment is based on an expectation of fair value less costs of disposal and 

depends on assumptions regarding future performance and valuations achievable on a sale of the business. 

Details of the review of the carrying value of goodwill are referred to in note 13. 

Valuation of other intangible assets 

On a business combination the directors are required to recognise and measure at fair value the identifiable 

assets and liabilities of the acquired business. This requires judgement in identifying intangible assets that meet 

the recognition criteria in IAS 38 and in attributing fair values. 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Judgement is required in assessing the useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible 

fixed assets. This assessment is based on analysis performed on historic group data, manufacturer’s guidance 

and the directors' best estimate of the life of the asset and of its residual value at the end of its useful economic 

life. 

Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables 

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. 

Assumptions are used to derive an overall lifetime expected credit loss rate for specific groupings of trade 

receivables which have been based on days overdue. These assumptions include historical collection rates and 

external macro-economic factors. See note 19 for the carrying amount of trade receivables and allowance for 

expected credit losses. 

Leases 

The transition to IFRS 16: Leases has involved the company exercising a degree of estimation and judgement. 

In determining the lease term, the group assesses whether or not it is reasonably certain to exercise, or not to 

exercise, options to extend or terminate a lease. The assessment is made at the start of the lease and is re-

assessed if significant events or changes in circumstances occur that are within the lessee’s control. 

When the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the group estimates the incremental 

borrowing rate based on the current rate incurred on its external borrowings.  

For the carrying amount of right-of-use assets, see note 15 and for the carrying amount of the related current 

and non-current lease liabilities, see note 21. 
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 

Separately disclosed items 

Separately disclosed items are those items that are unusual because of their size, nature or incidence, which the 

directors consider should be disclosed separately on the face of the consolidated income statement in order to 

enable a full understanding of the group's results. The directors consider that this presentation gives a more 

accurate presentation of the results of the group. Judgement is required in determining the additional line items 

which do not qualify as non-recurring, but which the directors nevertheless believe warrant separate disclosure 

due to their size and non-trading nature. 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty  

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet 

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 

Allowances against the carrying value of inventory 

Provision is made against the carrying value of inventory lines, based on their expected rate of sale, to ensure 

that they are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Judgement is required to assess future demand 

and promotional activity. Details of the allowances against the carrying value of inventory are referred to in 

note 18. 

Deferred income 

Deferred income is recognised in respect of cash loaded on top up cards and mobile phone apps for use on 

machines at higher education institutions. The deferred income balance is then adjusted based on usage and 

further cash loaded. Judgement is required when assessing the likelihood of any deferred income balances not 

being utilised. This assessment is made consistently during the year based on historical trends and ongoing 

monitoring. 

Deferred taxation 

The group recognises deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the directors' expectation of future taxable 

income and the related recoverability of the balance. This assessment requires judgement regarding future 

income streams and movements in corporation tax rates. Details of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are 

referred to in note 25. 
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5. Revenue 

An analysis of revenue by class of business and geographical segment is as follows: 

 

2020 

£’000 

11 May 2018 to 

31 October 2019 

£’000 
   

Distribution and service - United Kingdom 61,257 70,035 

Distribution and service - Overseas 517 510 

Machine rental - United Kingdom 48,689 55,963 

Machine rental - Overseas 620 559 

Managed income - United Kingdom 25,760 42,462 

Managed income - Overseas 541 820 

 
  

 137,384 170,349 
   

6. Loss before taxation 

   

 

2020 

£’000 

11 May 2018 to 

31 October 2019 

£’000 

Loss before taxation is stated after charging:   

Net foreign exchange losses 460 199 

Amortisation - intangible assets (note 14) 19,552 20,844 

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense (note 18) 26,940 29,161 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment:   

- owned by the group (note 15) 12,475 14,025 

- held as right-of-use assets (note 15) 2,281 - 

- held under finance leases (note 15) - 964 

- discontinued operations (note 15) - 72 

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment  1,311 2,280 

Operating lease rentals:   

- motor vehicles - 1,210 

- property - 506 

Separately disclosed items:   

- terminations 2,393 1,463 

- M&A 1,802 16,994 

- fair value movement in deferred and contingent consideration (2,993) - 

- legal and other costs 2,273 2,084 

- strategic projects 9,936 6,011 

- Covid-19 costs 4,969 - 
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6. Loss before taxation (continued) 

Separately disclosed items incurred during the period comprise: 

• Terminations costs relate to redundancies occurring within the business, including consultation costs. 

• M&A costs arise from acquisition of new entities into the group, including legal & professional fees, 

costs pertaining to aborted transactions 

• Legal and other costs include restructuring costs associated with organisational changes within the 

business, shareholder costs incurred in respect of shareholder management and administrative fees, and 

litigation and legal claims plus associated professional fees. 

• Strategic projects result in a material change to the business model and proposition or lead to a 

restructuring of the organisation impacting people, processes and systems. These projects are one-off 

significant investments into the business, which are not expected to recur due to their size and/or nature. 

• COVID-19 costs are specific costs borne by the business owing to the unprecedented impact to the UK 

economy caused by the pandemic. They are disclosed separately in order to enable a full understanding 

of the group's results.  

 

7.      Auditor’s remuneration  2020 2019 

  £’000 £’000 

Fees payable to the company’s auditor and its 

associates for the audit of the company’s financial 

statements 

 
12 12 

    

Fees payable to the company’s auditor and its 

associates for other services to the group 

 

    

The audit of the group and UK subsidiary 

financial statements 

 
168 172 

  
  

Total audit fees  180 184 

  
  

Tax and financial due diligence on acquisitions during the 

year 

 

65 - 

  
  

Total audit and non-audit services fees  245 184 

  
  

8. Staff costs 

Staff costs, including directors' remuneration, were as follows: 

   

2020 

£’000 

11 May 2018 to 

31 October 2019 

£’000 
     

Wages and salaries   43,495 43,386 

Social security costs   5,006 4,975 

Other pension costs   1,544 1,280 

   
  

   50,045 49,641 
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8. Staff costs (continued) 

The average monthly number of employees, including the directors, during the period was as follows: 

   

2020 

No. 

11 May 2018 to 

31 October 2019 

No. 
     

Administration and management   268 132 

Selling and production   856 834 

Research and development   2 2 

   
  

   1,126 968 
     

9. Directors’ remuneration 

 

2020 

£’000 

11 May 2018 to 

31 October 2019 

£’000 
   

Emoluments 1,324 1,121 

Compensation for loss of office 309 - 

Share based payments expense 17 - 

 
  

During the period there were no retirement benefits accruing to any of the directors (2019: £nil). The highest 

paid director received remuneration of £985,215 (2019: £415,000). 

Key management personnel comprise four executive directors of the company and the group’s subsidiary 

companies.  

10. Finance costs 

   

2020 

£’000 

11 May 2018 to 

31 October 2019 

£’000 
     

Interest expense on     

Bank loans and overdrafts   26,793 28,461 

Finance leases and hire purchase contracts   - 151 

Preference share debt   42,284 45,866 

Interest on lease liabilities   320 - 

   
  

   69,397 74,478 
     

Interest payable in respect of bank loan and overdrafts includes £2,591,000 (2019: £2,354,000) in respect of 

amortisation of debt issue costs. 



JLA Acquisitions Topco Limited 

 

Notes to the financial statements 

Year ended 31 October 2020 

 

47 

11. Taxation 

 

Analysis of tax charge in the period   

2020 

£’000 

11 May 2018 to 

31 October 2019 

£’000 

    

Current tax    

UK corporation tax charge on loss for the period of 19%  -  - 

Overseas tax  13 13 

Adjustments in respect of prior periods  (56) - 

  
  

Total current tax (credit)/charge  (43) 13 

    

Deferred tax (see note 25)    

Origination and reversal of temporary differences  (8,733)  (6,127) 

Adjustment to charge on acquisition balance sheet  - 300 

Effect of change in tax rate  2,338   99 

Adjustments in respect of prior periods  (1,103) - 

  
  

Total deferred tax credit  (7,498) (5,728) 

  
  

Total tax credit on loss  (7,541)   (5,715) 

  
  

    

Tax on loss is attributable to:    

Loss from continuing operations  (7,541)   (5,715) 

Profit from discontinued operation  - - 

  
  

  (7,541)   (5,715) 

  
  

    

Tax credit included in other comprehensive income    

  

2020 

£’000 

11 May 2018 to 

31 October 2019 

£’000 

Deferred tax    

Origination and reversal of temporary differences  (75) 82 
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11. Taxation (continued) 

Factors affecting tax credit for the period 

The tax assessed for the period differs from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%.  The 

differences are explained below: 

 

2020 

£’000 

11 May 2018 

to 

31 October 

2019 

£’000 
   

Loss from continuing operations before tax (87,563) (88,416) 

Profit from discontinuing operations before tax - 716 

 
  

 (87,563) (87,700) 

 
  

Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in 

the UK of 19%  
(16,637) (16,663) 

   

Effects of:   

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7,868 10,677 

Fixed asset differences 49 (108) 

Rate change 2,338 378 

Deferred tax not provided - 1 

Adjustments in respect of prior periods (1,159) - 

 
  

Tax credit for the period (7,541) (5,715) 

 
  

Factors that may affect future tax charges 

Legislation to reduce the main rate of UK corporation tax from 19% to 17% was passed by Parliament in 2016 

to take effect from 1 April 2020. The UK Government announced in March 2020 that the planned reduction in 

the rate to 17% would no longer proceed and the rate would be maintained at 19%.  This change was enacted at 

the balance sheet date and deferred tax assets and liabilities have therefore been calculated at a rate of 19% in 

these financial statements. The impact of the change in tax rate is disclosed in the tax reconciliation. 

The company is registered in Jersey but is not subject to Jersey income tax and withholding tax, as it is resident 

in the United Kingdom due to its business being centrally managed and controlled there. 
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12. Discontinued operations 

The Competition & Markets Authority (CMA) concluded that the acquisition of Washstation Limited in May 

2017 by a subsidiary of the JLA group acquired resulted, or may be expected to result, in a substantial 

lessening of competition in the market for the supply of managed laundry services to higher education 

customers under vend share agreements in the UK and that a divestiture of the higher education contracts and 

all associated assets held by the Washstation business would be the only effective remedy. There was no loss 

on disposal due to the fair value adjustments made as part of the acquisition of the group. 

The results of the discontinued operations, which have been included in the loss for the period, were as 

follows: 

 

 

11 May 2018 to 

31 October 2019 

£’000 

  

Revenue 2,630 

Cost of sales (1,842) 

Administrative expenses (72) 

 
 

Profit before tax 716 

Tax - 

 
 

Profit attributable discontinued operations 716 
  

The sale concluded on 5 June 2019. Discontinued operations contributed £788,000 to the group’s net operating 

cash flows and utilised £278,000 of cash for capital expenditure. 
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13. Goodwill 

Group Goodwill 

 £’000 

Cost  

Additions arising from acquisition of JLA Group 402,220 

Additions arising from the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings 3,674 
  

At 31 October 2019 405,894 
  

Additions arising from the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings 6,943 

Adjustments arising from the retrospective re-assessment of previous acquisitions within the 

12-month measurement period defined in IFRS 3 389 
  

At 31 October 2020 413,226 
  

Carrying amount  

At 31 October 2020 413,226 
  

At 31 October 2019 405,894 
  

At 11 May 2018 - 
  

The company held no goodwill at the reporting date. 

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units (CGUs) or 

Group of units that are expected to benefit from that business combination. The CGUs for the business are the 

Laundry, Catering, Heating, and Fire Safety divisions. 

The Group is obliged to test goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that 

goodwill might be impaired due to the goodwill deemed to have an indefinite life. 

In order to perform this test, management are required to compare the carrying value of the relevant CGU 

including the goodwill with the recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts of the CGU are determined from 

a value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the 

discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period. 

Management estimate discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time 

value of money and the risks specific to the CGU. The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the 

most recent financial budgets approved by management for the next five years and extrapolates cash flows 

based on an average long-term growth rate of 3.0%, which does not exceed the long-term growth rate for the 

relevant market segment. The pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast cash flows is 11.0% for laundry, 12.0% 

for catering and 13.0% for the heating and fire safety divisions. 

The Group has also conducted a sensitivity analysis on the impairment test of the CGU carrying value 

including reducing cash inflows and changing discount rates. 

As a result, when considering the carrying value of goodwill, the directors have considered the base case five-

year plan and the sensitivities in drawing their conclusions. 

The sensitivity case utilised by the business of decreasing sales and gross margin by 5% demonstrates a 

goodwill headroom of £79 million in total.  Should trading exhibit the trends reasonably expected in the 

downside case the directors consider that they have sufficient mitigating actions available to them in terms of 

cost and margin management to prevent a material impairment being reported. 
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14. Intangible assets 

Group Contracts 

Customer 

relationships Technology Marketing Software Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Cost       

Additions arising from 

acquisition 
125,801 20,789 718 50,497 4,028 201,833 

Additions - - - - 2,609 2,609 

 
      

At 31 October 2019 125,801 20,789 718 50,497 6,637 204,442 

Additions arising from 

acquisition 
- 14,123 - - - 14,123 

IFRS 3 adjustments - 195 - - - 195 

Additions - - - - 997 997 

 
      

At 31 October 2020 125,801 35,107 718 50,497 7,634 219,757 

       

Amortisation       

Charge for the period 13,819 2,091 145 4,068 721 20,844 

 
      

At 31 October 2019 13,819 2,091 145 4,068 721 20,844 

Charge for the period 11,437 3,363 120 3,366 1,266 19,552 

 
      

At 31 October 2020 25,256 5,454 265 7,434 1,987 40,396 

       

Carrying amount       

At 31 October 2020 100,545 29,653 453 43,063 5,647 179,361 
       

At 31 October 2019 111,982 18,698 573 46,429 5,916 183,598 
       

At 11 May 2018 - - - - - - 

 

      

The adjustment to customer relationships above arises from the retrospective re-assessment of previous 

acquisitions within the 12-month measurement period defined in IFRS 3. 

The company held no intangible assets at the reporting date. 

Separately identifiable intangible assets were valued and their appropriate useful lives established at the time of 

acquisition.  The carrying value of these assets and their remaining useful life is reviewed annually for 

indicators of impairment. 

Amortisation is charged to administrative expenses in the Consolidated Income Statement. 
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15. Property, plant and equipment 

Group 

Freehold 

buildings Leasehold improvements 

Plant and 

machinery 

Motor 

vehicles 

Fixtures & 

fittings 

Right-of-use 

assets Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Cost        

Additions arising from acquisition 2,084 17 56,207 839 1,629 - 60,776 

Additions - - 26,881 2,642 1,711 - 31,234 

Disposals - - (14,508) (502) (28) - (15,038) 

 
       

At 31 October 2019 – as previously 

reported 2,084 17 68,580 2,979 3,312 - 76,972 

Cost of right-of-use assets on transition to 

IFRS 16 - - - - - 3,032 3,032 

Transfer of hire purchase lease assets into 

right-of-use assets on transition to IFRS 

16 - - - (3,414) - 3,414 - 

Other adjustments 42 - - 869 (578) - 333 

 
       

At 1 November 2019 2,126 17 68,580 434 2,734 6,446 80,337 

Additions arising from acquisition - 59 154 20 186 226 645 

Additions 5 24 18,358 3 1,407 2,880 22,677 

Disposals - - (3,549) (35) - (198) (3,782) 

 
       

At 31 October 2020 2,131 100 83,543 422 4,327 9,354 99,877 
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15. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Group 

Freehold 

buildings 

Leasehold 

improvements 

Plant and 

machinery Motor vehicles 

Fixtures & 

fittings 

Right-of-use 

assets Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Depreciation        

Charge for the period 46 2 13,099 1,155 759 - 15,061 

Disposals - - (9,301) (479) - - (9,780) 
        

At 31 October 2019 – as previously reported 46 2 3,798 676 759 - 5,281 

Transfer of hire purchase lease assets into 

right-of-use assets on transition to IFRS 16 - - - (861) - 861 - 

Other adjustments - - - 351 - - 351 

 
       

At 1 November 2019 46 2 3,798 166 759 861 5,632 

Charge for the period 37 15 11,340 106 977 2,281 14,756 

Disposals - - (2,139) (35) - (125) (2,299) 
        

At 31 October 2020 83 17 12,999 237 1,736 3,017 18,089 
              

        

Net book value        

At 31 October 2020 2,048 83 70,544 185 2,591 6,337 81,788 
        

At 31 October 2019 2,038 15 64,782 2,303 2,553 - 71,691 
        

At 11 May 2018 - - - - - - - 
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15. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Following the transition to IFRS 16, the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment include right-of-use assets 

at 31 October 2020 as detailed below: 

Group 

2020 

£’000 

2019 

£’000 

The types of assets the cost of right-of-use assets relates to:   

Leasehold property 3,108 - 

Motor vehicles 6,243 - 

Office equipment 3 - 

   

At 31 October 9,354 - 

   

The types of assets the depreciation of right-of-use assets relates to:   

Leasehold property 492 - 

Motor vehicles 2,525 - 

Office equipment - - 

   

At 31 October 3,017 - 

   

The types of assets the carrying amount of right-of-use assets relates to:   

Leasehold property 2,616 - 

Motor vehicles 3,718 - 

Office equipment 3 - 

   

At 31 October 6,337 - 

   

In the prior year, the net book value of assets held under finance leases or hire purchase contracts, included in 

property, plant and equipment was £2,553,000. The depreciation charge on these assets for the prior period was 

£964,000.   

The company has no property, plant and equipment. 

16. Investments 

Company 

Shares in 

subsidiary 

undertakings 

£’000 
  

Cost and net book value  

At 11 May 2018 - 

Acquisition of JLA Acquisitions Jersey Holdco Limited 10,428 

  

At 31 October 2019 10,428 

  

At 31 October 2020 10,428 
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17. Subsidiaries 

The company owns 100% of the issued share capital of the companies listed below, all of which are registered 

in England and Wales and are registered at Meadowcroft Lane, Halifax Road, Ripponden, Halifax, West 

Yorkshire, HX6 4AJ, except where otherwise indicated. 

Directly held Ownership Country Registered office Nature of business 
     

JLA Acquisitions Jersey 

Holdco Limited 

 Jersey 11-15 Seaton Place, St 

Helier, Jersey, JE4 0QH 

Intermediate holding company 

 

Indirectly held     

JLA Holdco Limited    Intermediate holding company 

JLA Midco Limited    Intermediate holding company 

JLA Bidco Limited    Intermediate holding company 

JLA New Equityco Limited    Intermediate holding company 

JLA New Debtco Limited    Intermediate holding company 

JLA New Holdco Limited    Intermediate holding company 

JLA Equityco Limited    Intermediate holding company 

JLA Debtco Limited    Intermediate holding company 

JLA Clean Limited    Intermediate holding company 

Inhoco 3498 Limited    Intermediate holding company 

Broomco (3360) Limited    Intermediate holding company – 

Active proposal to strike off 

Vanilla Group Limited    Intermediate holding company 

JLA Limited    Laundry equipment supplier 

JLA Total Care Limited    Hire and service of laundry 

equipment and provision of 

managed laundry facilities 

Circuit Launderette Services 

Limited 

   Supply of managed launderettes 

Circuit Launderette Services 

(Ireland) Limited 

 Ireland 70 Sir Rogerson’s Quay, 

Dublin 2 

Supply of managed launderettes 

Proton (Southern) Limited    Catering equipment supplier 

Fire Facilities Management 

Limited 

   Installation and service of fire 

safety equipment 

Ellesmere Group Limited 95%   Installation and service of 

heating equipment 

Newcombustion Engineering 

Limited 

   Installation and service of fire 

safety equipment 

Trinity Heat Care Limited    Installation and service of 

heating equipment 
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17. Subsidiaries (continued) 

 Ownership Country Registered office Nature of business 

Indirectly held (continued)     

     

T Jolly Services (UK) Limited    Intermediate holding company 

T Jolly Facility Services 

Limited 

   Installation and service of 

heating equipment 

Atlas Services Holding 

Limited 

   Intermediate holding company 

Atlas Sterile Services Limited    Testing of clean rooms and 

sterile containment facilities 

Astral Fire and Security 

Limited  

   Installation and service of fire 

safety equipment 

Astral Total Limited    Installation and service of fire 

safety equipment 

Crystal Surface Limited    Specialised cleaning of 

commercial kitchens and ducts 

ITS Fire & Security Limited    Installation and service of fire 

safety equipment 

MacDonald Martin Limited    Installation and service of fire 

safety equipment 

FSW Holdings Limited    Intermediate holding company 

Firewatch South West 

Limited 

   Installation and service of fire 

safety equipment 

Comcat Engineering Limited  Scotland Unit 3a 3, Smithton 

Industrial Estate, 

Inverness, IV2 7WL 

Dormant 

Ripponden 10 Limited    Dormant 

Ripponden 11 Limited 95%   Intermediate holding company 

Ripponden 12 Limited    Intermediate holding company 

Westwells (North West) 

Limited 

   Dormant 

Newco Catering Equipment 

Limited 

   Dormant 

DCSW Limited 90%   Intermediate holding company 

DC Products Limited 85%  Unit 25 Lodge Hill 

Industrial Park, Westbury 

Sub Mendip, Wells, BA5 

1EY 

Catering equipment supplier 

Acer Equipment Limited    Dormant 

Martin & Richards Limited    Dormant 

Fire Bright Solutions Limited    Installation and service of fire 

safety equipment and systems 

William Whitfield Limited  Scotland 6 Belgrave Street, Bellshill 

Industrial Estate, Bellshill, 

ML4 3NP 

Installation and service of 

heating equipment 

The Stanland Group Limited    Dormant 

Washrite Limited    Dormant 

Circuit Rentals Limited    Dormant 

Wilson Electrics Limited    Dormant 
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17. Subsidiaries (continued) 

The table presented overleaf sets out the group’s acquisitions during the period and the cost and provisional 

fair value of net assets acquired and the goodwill arising on the acquisitions.  

The fair value of the net assets acquired will be finalised in the current period as the businesses are fully 

integrated into the group. The acquisitions have been accounted for under the acquisition method.  

On 11 February 2020, the group acquired 100% of the issued ordinary share capital and voting rights of Astral 

Fire & Safety Limited and Astral Total Limited for cash consideration including a fair value estimate of the 

deferred contingent consideration eventually payable if criteria are met post-acquisition of £3,861,000. The 

acquisition was selected to expand the company’s fire safety business and share of the market. 

On 12 February 2020, the group acquired 100% of the issued ordinary share capital and voting rights of T Jolly 

Facility Services Limited and Atlas Service Holdings Limited for cash consideration including a fair value 

estimate of the deferred contingent consideration eventually payable if criteria are met post-acquisition of 

£7,657,000. The acquisition was selected to expand the company’s heating business and share of the market. 

On 21 August 2020, the group acquired 100% of the issued ordinary share capital and voting rights of Crystal 

Surface Limited for cash consideration including a fair value estimate of the deferred contingent consideration 

eventually payable if criteria are met post-acquisition of £688,000. The acquisition was selected to complement 

the existing catering business. 

On 2 September 2020, the group acquired 100% of the issued ordinary share capital and voting rights of ITS 

Fire & Security Limited for cash consideration including a fair value estimate of the deferred contingent 

consideration eventually payable if criteria are met post-acquisition of £7,069,000. The acquisition was 

selected to expand the company’s fire safety business and share of the market. 

On 8 September 2020, the group acquired 100% of the issued ordinary share capital and voting rights of 

Firewatch Southwest Holdings Limited for cash consideration including a fair value estimate of the deferred 

contingent consideration eventually payable if criteria are met post-acquisition of £2,691,000. The acquisition 

was selected to expand the company’s fire safety business and share of the market. 

On 18 September 2020, the group acquired 100% of the issued ordinary share capital and voting rights of 

MacDonald Martin Limited for cash consideration including a fair value estimate of the deferred contingent 

consideration eventually payable if criteria are met post-acquisition of £2,649,000. The acquisition was 

selected to expand the company’s fire safety business and share of the market. 
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17. Subsidiaries (continued) 

 

 

 

Astral Fire 

and Safety 

Limited & 

Astral Total 

Limited 

T Jolly 

Facility 

Services 

Limited & 

Atlas Service 

Holding 

Limited 

Crystal 

Surface 

Limited 

 

Book value 

and 

provisional 

fair value 

Book value 

and 

provisional 

fair value 

Book value 

and 

provisional 

fair value 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 
    

Identifiable intangible assets (note 14) 2,955 3,893 327 

Property, plant and equipment (note 15) 327 184 7 

Inventory 134 537 - 

Financial assets 928 3,322 314 

Financial liabilities (1,090) (1,424) (78) 

Deferred tax liability (note 25) (600) (757) (62) 

 
   

Total identifiable assets/liabilities 2,654 5,755 508 

 
   

    

Goodwill (note 13) 1,207 1,902 180 

Less: non-controlling interests - - - 

 
   

Net assets acquired 3,861 7,657 688 

 
   

Satisfied by:    

Cash consideration 2,266 5,136 585 

Fair value of deferred cash consideration 620 1,000 - 

Fair value of contingent consideration 975 1,521 103 

 
   

Total consideration transferred 3,861 7,657 688 

 
   

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: 
   

    

Cash consideration 2,266 6,136 585 

Less: cash, overdraft, and cash equivalent balances acquired (402) (1,952) (199) 

 
   

 1,864 4,184 386 
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17. Subsidiaries (continued) 

 

 

ITS Fire & 

Security 

Limited 

FSW 

Holdings 

Limited 

MacDonald 

Martin 

Limited 

 

Book value 

and 

provisional 

fair value 

Book value 

and 

provisional 

fair value 

Book value 

and 

provisional 

fair value 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 
    

Identifiable intangible assets (note 14) 3,609 2,097 1,242 

Property, plant and equipment (note 15) 28 23 76 

Inventory 23 99 109 

Financial assets 3,349 494 1,024 

Financial liabilities (1,182) (635) (269) 

Deferred tax liability (note 25) (689) (403) (240) 

 
   

Total identifiable assets/liabilities 5,138 1,675 1,942 

 
   

    

Goodwill (note 13) 1,931 1,016 707 

Less: non-controlling interests - - - 

 
   

Net assets acquired 7,069 2,691 2,649 

 
   

Satisfied by:    

Cash consideration 6,619 2,160 2,340 

Consideration due to sellers offset against amount due from sellers 

to ITS Fire & Security Ltd 
450 - - 

Fair value of contingent consideration - 531 309 

 
   

Total consideration transferred 7,069 2,691 2,649 

 
   

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: 
   

    

Cash consideration 6,619 2,160 2,340 

Less: cash, overdraft, and cash equivalent balances acquired (1,626) (151) (666) 

 
   

 4,993 2,009 1,674 

 
   

 

The acquisition costs incurred and expensed to the consolidated income statement totalled £1,802,000 (2019: 

£16,994,000) and are presented within administrative expenses. 

The goodwill arising on the acquisition noted above is principally considered to relate to: 

 the value of the assembled workforce which is not separately identifiable 

 expected business synergies; and 

 savings related to increased buying power with common suppliers  
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17. Subsidiaries (continued) 

During the period, adjustments were made to the provisional fair value of the net assets acquired totalling 

£1,047,000 (2019: £9,300,000). The value of these adjustments has been recognised as an adjustment to 

goodwill (note 13). 

The fair value adjustments represent provision against balances now considered irrecoverable or understated 

liabilities at the point of acquisition. 

Group Total 

£’000 

Total 

£’000 6   

Inventories 100 700 

Trade receivables 626 900 

Current tax liabilities 35 - 

Accruals  171 - 

Social security and other taxes 115 - 

Fixed assets - 1,600 

Washstation impairment of goodwill, intangible and tangible fixed 

assets 
- 6,100 

 
  

 1,047 9,300 
   

 

18 Inventories 

Group 31 October 

2020 

£’000 

31 October 

2019 

£’000 6   

Finished goods and goods for resale 11,498 11,488 

Work in progress 99 - 

 
  

 11,597 11,488 
   

 

The company held no inventory at the reporting date. 

There is no material difference between the balance sheet value of inventories and their replacement costs. 

Inventories are stated after provisions for impairment of £1,438,000 (2019: £2,027,000).  No unutilised 

provision was reversed during the period. 

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the period in respect of continuing operations was  

£26,940,000 (2019: £29,161,000). 
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19. Trade and other receivables 

 

Group 31 October 2020 

£’000 

31 October 2019 

£’000    

Trade receivables 28,255 16,438 

Allowance for doubtful debts (3,308) (647) 

 
  

 24,947 15,791 

   

Other receivables 5,017 1,429 

Prepayments  5,005 6,332 
   

 34,969 23,552 
   

 

Company 31 October 2020 

£’000 

31 October 2019 

£’000    

Current   

Other receivables 5 15 

Amounts owed by group undertakings – current - - 

 
  

 5 15 

 
  

Non-current   

Amounts owed by group undertakings – non current 379,187 341,654 

 
  

 379,187 341,654 
   

  

Interest is charged at 12% on the intercompany loan lent to JLA Acquisitions Jersey Holdco Limited. The 

principal loan amount is £298,134,000. No interest is charged on the other amounts owed to group 

undertakings. 
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19. Trade and other receivables (continued) 

 

Trade receivables 

Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are therefore measured at 

amortised cost. 

Total trade receivables (net of allowances) held by the group at 31 October 2020 amount to £24,947,000 (31 

October 2019: £15,791,000). 

The average credit period taken on sales of goods is 64 days (2019: 42 days). Allowances against doubtful 

debts are recognised against trade receivables on a specific basis based on irrecoverable amounts determined 

by reference to past default experience of the counterparty and an analysis of the counterparty's current 

financial position. 

Before accepting any new customer, the group uses an external credit scoring system to assess the potential 

customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are 

reviewed on a regular basis.  Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to 

the group's customer base being wide and unrelated. 

Trade receivables disclosed include amounts which are past due at the reporting date but against which the 

group has not recognised an allowance for doubtful receivables because there has not been a significant change 

in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. 

Ageing of receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) 

   

 

31 October 2020 

£’000 

31 October 2019 

£’000 
     

Not past due   12,821 8,936 

0-30 days   3,795 3,395 

31-60 days   2,119 1,264 

61-90 days   1,187 787 

91 days and above   5,025 1,409 

   
  

   24,947 15,791 
     

Ageing of impaired receivables 

   

 

31 October 2020 

£’000 

 

31 October 2019 

£’000 
     

Not past due   449 - 

0-90 days   352 52 

91+ days   2,507 595 

   
  

   3,308 647 
     

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables is approximately equal to their 

fair value. 

 The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets. 
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20. Trade and other payables 

 

Group          31 October 2020 

        £’000 

         31 October 2019 

        £’000    

Current liabilities   

Trade payables 16,835 15,234 

Social security and other taxes 8,397 4,522 

Accruals  11,548 18,561 

Deferred income 3,544 4,262 

Other creditors 381 411 
   

 40,705 42,990 
   

Social security and other taxes includes contributions payable of £225,000 (2019: £164,000) arising from the 

group's defined contribution pension scheme.  

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value.  

 

Company 31 October 2020 

£’000 

31 October 2019 

£’000    

Amounts owed to group undertakings 2,750 677 
   

The amounts owed to group undertakings are interest free and repayable on demand. 

21. Lease liabilities 

The group leases properties used for its operations in the UK. Lease terms are 1 to 12 years. 

The group leases motor vehicles for use by engineers, as well as some vehicles for use by sales staff and 

management. Lease terms are 1 to 3 years. 

Lease expenses of £14,539 are included within administrative expenses in relation to short-term leases. 

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities 

The maturity of the gross contractual discounted cash flows due on the Group’s lease liabilities is set out below 

based on the period between 31 October and the contractual maturity date: 

Group          Property 

leases  

31 October 2020 

        £’000 

Motor vehicle 

leases  

31 October 2020 

        £’000 

Office equipment 

leases  

31 October 2020 

        £’000 

Total leases 

31 October 

2020 

£’000      

Within one year 805 1,654 2 2,461 

Within one to five years 1,557 2,438 - 3,995 

Over five years 254 - - 254 
     

 2,616 4,092 2 6,710 
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21. Lease liabilities (continued) 

The maturity of the gross contractual undiscounted cash flows due on the Group’s lease liabilities is set out 

below based on the period between 31 October and the contractual maturity date: 

Group          Property 

leases  

31 October 2020 

        £’000 

Motor vehicle 

leases  

31 October 2020 

        £’000 

Office equipment 

leases  

31 October 2020 

        £’000 

Total leases 

31 October 

2020 

£’000      

Within one year 932 1,826 2 2,760 

Within one to five years 1,784 2,617 - 4,401 

Over five years 264 - - 264 
     

 2,980 4,443 2 7,425 
     

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised by the group at 1 

November 2019 is 5.62% which is based on the weighted average external borrowing rate of the group. 

Group        Property 

leases  

        £’000 

Motor vehicle 

leases  

        £’000 

Office equipment 

leases 

£’000 

Total leases 

£’000      

Operating lease commitments at 31 

October 2019 3,093 841 - 3,934 

Operating lease commitments at 31 

October 2019 discounted using the 

incremental borrowing rate 2,460 785 - 3,245 

Lease liability recognised at 1 November 

2019 2,247 785 

- 

3,032 
     

Difference at 1 November 2019 (213) - - (213) 
 

    

The difference in property operating leases transitioned under IFRS 16 at 1 November 2019 is due to re-

evaluation of the break clauses in the lease agreements, as a result of the transition, which reduced the future 

cash flow outlook. 

22. Borrowings 

Group 31 October 2020 

£’000 

31 October 2019 

£’000 

   

Bank loans 450,950 364,666 

Redeemable preference shares 395,790 353,506 

Loan note 287 1,237 
   

 847,027 719,409 
 

  

 

Company 31 October 2020 

£’000 

31 October 2019 

£’000 

   

Redeemable preference shares 395,790 353,506 
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22. Borrowings (continued) 

 

31 October 2020 

£’000 

31 October 2019 

£’000 

Less than one year   

Loan note 287 1,237 

 
  

 

 

£’000 £’000 

Between two and five years   

Bank loans 341,079 23,000 

 
  

      £’000 

 

£’000 

Over five years    

Bank loans  109,871 341,666 

Redeemable preference shares  395,790 353,506 

  
  

  505,661 695,172 
    

 

The facilities comprise a £260,000,000 1st lien term loan repayable on 15 August 2025, a £95,000,000 2nd lien 

term loan repayable on 15 August 2026 and a £50,000,000 revolving credit facility repayable on 15 August 

2024. 

On 28 February 2020, the group secured additional loan facilities to its 1st and 2nd lien term loans. A 

£30,000,000 Facility B2 Senior loan was secured and fully drawn on the same terms as the 1st lien term loan, 

repayable on 15 August 2025. A £10,000,000 Facility B2 Second Lien was secured and fully drawn on the 

same basis as the 2nd lien term loan, repayable on 15 August 2026. 

On 28 February 2020, the group secured a new Acquisition & Capex Facility (“ACF”) of £40,000,000, which 

can be used to refinance existing bank debt, acquisitions or capital expenditure. The ACF was secured on the 

same terms as the 1st lien term loan. The ACF is available to draw until 28 August 2022, with any drawn 

balance repayable on 15 August 2025. 

At 31 October 2020, the group had utilised £50,000,000 (31 October 2020: £23,000,000) of the revolving 

credit facility.  The senior facilities term loans were drawn down in full. At 31 October 2020, the group had 

drawn down £15,000,000 (31 October 2020: nil) of the ACF.  

The term loan facilities are secured by fixed and floating charges over a number of the group’s subsidiaries. 

The interest rate payable on the 1st lien term loan & Facility B2 Senior loan represents a 4.00% margin above 

LIBOR, the PIK interest rate on the 2nd lien term loan & Facility B2 Second Lien loan represents a 7.00% 

margin above LIBOR and the interest rate payable on the revolving credit facility, whenever it is utilised, 

represents a 2.75% margin above LIBOR. 

At 31 October 2020, included within bank loans is an amount of £13,329,000 (31 October 2019: £15,712,000) 

in respect of unamortised loan costs. The loan costs are being written off over the period of the debt to which 

they relate to. 

The loan notes are scheduled for repayment in August 2021 and carry a fixed interest rate of 3% until 

repayment. 
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22. Borrowings (continued) 

On 15 August 2018, 307,640,473 cumulative redeemable preference shares were issued as fully paid with a par 

value of £0.00001 per share and a share premium of £0.99999. The redeemable preference shares are 

mandatorily redeemable at par on the earlier of the completion of a sale of the group or the day immediately 

before a listing and incur a fixed coupon of 12% compounding annually. Redeemable preference shares do not 

carry the right to vote. 

23. Finance leases 

At 31 October 2019 the group’s finance lease obligations were as follows: 

 
 

Group – Minimum lease payments 31 October 2020 

£’000 
31 October 2019 

£’000 
   

Expiry date:   

No later than 1 year - 812 

Later than 1 year no later than 5 years - 2,216 

 
  

 - 3,028 
   

 

Group – Present value of minimum lease 

payments 
31 October 2020 

£’000 
31 October 2019 

£’000 
   

Expiry date:   

No later than 1 year - 701 

Later than 1 year no later than 5 years - 2,020 

 
  

 - 2,721 
   

The company held no finance leases at the reporting date. 

From 1 November 2019, the group has recognised all leases as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except 

for short-term and low-value leases under the provisions of IFRS 16. See note 21 for further information. 
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24. Derivative financial instruments 

Group 

 31 October 

2020 

£’000 

31 October 

2019 

£’000 

    

Derivatives that are designated and effective as hedging instruments 

carried at fair value 

 
 

 

     Foreign currency forward contracts   - 481 

     Diesel swap contract  40 - 
  

  

 

The company held no derivative financial instruments at the reporting date. 

The group has entered into the following master netting agreements with the following counterparties: 

 

Group 

 31 October 

2020 

£’000 

31 October 

2019 

£’000 

    

Lloyds Bank Plc    

Derivative liabilities    

     Foreign currency forward contracts  - 274 

     Diesel swap contract  40 - 

The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc     

Derivative liabilities    

     Foreign currency forward contracts   - 207 

  
  

  40 481 
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24. Derivative financial instruments (continued) 

Cash flow hedges 

Trading derivatives are classified as either current assets or current liabilities. The full fair value of hedging 

derivatives is classified as non-current assets or liabilities if the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more 

than 12 months and, as current assets or liabilities, if the maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. 

Forward foreign currency contracts 

In the prior year, the group entered into contracts to purchase goods in US dollars and Euros and took out 

forward foreign currency contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk arising from these anticipated future 

transactions, which are designated as cash flow hedges. The total value of these contracts over the year ended 

31 October 2020 was $15,290,000 at a weighted average exchange rate of 1.291 and €13,140,000 at an 

exchange rate of 1.113. The hedged cash flows affected profit or loss within the next financial period. 

The hedged highly probable forecast transactions denominated in foreign currency were expected to occur at 

various dates during the year ended 31 October 2020. The accumulated loss of £481,000 recognised in the 

hedging reserve in equity was recognised as a loss in the current period. 

No loss was recognised in the prior year within the Consolidated Income Statement as a result of the ineffective 

portion of cash flow hedges as it was immaterial to the trading performance of the group. 

 

The group will assess the forecast purchases in USD and EUR with the current USD and EUR cash balances 

before entering into new forward contracts. 

 

Diesel swap contracts 

 

In July 2020, the group entered into a swap agreement based on underlying diesel prices to hedge the financial 

risk of volatile prices arising from the anticipated purchase of fuel in the future as part of the regular business 

activities. This was designated as a cash flow hedge. The specified period of the contract is the 16 months from 

July 2020 to October 2021 covering a notional quantity of 800,000 litres of diesel fuel. 

 

The hedged, highly probable purchases of fuel are expected to occur at various dates during the next 12 

months. The accumulated loss of £40,000 recognised in the hedging reserve in equity will be recognised as a 

profit or loss in the period that the hedged item affects the Consolidated Income Statement. 

 

No loss was recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement as a result of the ineffective portion of cash flow 

hedges as it was immaterial to the trading performance of the group. 
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25. Deferred taxation 

Group 31 October 

2020 

£’000 

31 October 

2019 

£’000 
   

Non-current deferred tax asset 14,888 7,683 

Non-current deferred tax liability (33,053) (30,433) 

 
  

 (18,165) (22,750) 
   

 

 £’000 
  

Balance acquired on acquisition of JLA Group (26,978) 

On acquisition of subsidiaries (1,441) 

Current period – income statement 5,751 

Current period – other comprehensive income (82) 

 
 

At 1 November 2019 (22,750) 

On acquisition of subsidiaries (note 17) (2,751) 

Adjustments arising from retrospective re-assessment (38) 

Impact of tax rate change on acquisition of subsidiaries (198) 

Current period – income statement 7,497 

Current period – other comprehensive income 75 

 
 

At 31 October 2020 (18,165) 

 
 

 

The company had the following deferred tax asset as of the period ending 31 October 2020. 

 

 

Company 31 October 

2020 

£’000 

31 October 

2019 

£’000 
   

Non-current deferred tax asset - 104 
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25. Deferred taxation (continued) 

The group deferred taxation balance is made up as temporary differences on the following: 

 

 

 

 

Tangible 

fixed assets 

£’000 

 

 

Intangible 

fixed assets 

£’000 

Derivative 

financial 

assets and 

liabilities 

£’000 

Losses  

£’000 

Other 

temporary 

differences  

£’000 

Total 

£’000 
       

On acquisition of 

subsidiaries 
- (28,419) - - - (28,419) 

Current period – 

income statement 
1,693 (1,932) - 5,575 415 5,751 

Current period – other 

comprehensive 

income 

- - (82) - - (82) 

 
      

As at 31 October 2019 1,693 (30,351) (82) 5,575 415 (22,750) 

On acquisition of 

subsidiaries (note 17) 
- (2,751) - - - (2,751) 

Adjustments arising 

from retrospective re-

assessment 

- (38) - - - (38) 

Impact of tax rate 

change on acquisition 

of subsidiaries 

- (198) - - - (198) 

Rate change 416 (3,355) - 549 52 (2,338) 

Current period – 

income statement 
571 3,647 - 5,664 (47) 9,835 

Current period – other 

comprehensive 

income 

- - 75 - - 
75 

 

 
      

As at 31 October 2020 2,680 (33,046) (7) 11,788 420 (18,165) 
       

 

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been netted off as required by IAS12. The amount of non-

current deferred tax liability disclosed on the face of the balance sheet after this set-off is £18,165,000.  

Deferred tax assets totalling approximately £47,000 (2019: £42,000) have not been recognised on losses 

carried forward of £246,000 (2019: £246,000). 

Legislation to reduce the main rate of UK corporation tax from 19% to 17% was passed by Parliament in 2016 

to take effect from 1 April 2020. The UK Government announced in March 2020 that the planned reduction in 

the rate to 17% would no longer proceed and the rate would be maintained at 19%.  This change was enacted at 

the balance sheet date and deferred tax assets and liabilities have therefore been calculated at a rate of 19% in 

these financial statements. The impact of the change in tax rate is disclosed in the tax reconciliation.  
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26. Share capital  

 

Share nominal 

£’000 

Share premium 

£’000 

Share capital 

£’000 

Allotted, called up and fully paid at 31 October 2020    

132,025 A1 ordinary shares of £1 each (par value £0.01) 1 131 132 

15,000 A2 ordinary shares of £1 each (par value £0.20) 3 12 15 

808,031 B1 ordinary shares of £1each (par value £0.01) 8 800 808 

32,369 B2 ordinary shares of £1 each (par value £0.01) 1 31 32 

 
   

 13 974 987 
    

 

Share nominal 

£’000 

Share premium 

£’000 

Share capital 

£’000 

Allotted, called up and fully paid at 31 October 2019    

112,025 A1 ordinary shares of £1 each (par value £0.01) 1 111 112 

15,000 A2 ordinary shares of £1 each (par value £0.20) 3 12 15 

809,375 B1 ordinary shares of £1each (par value £0.01) 8 801 809 

30,625 B2 ordinary shares of £1 each (par value £0.01) 1 30 31 

 
   

 13 954 967 
    

All the share capital called up and fully paid was issued in the period. 

The A1, A2, B1 and B2 represent the ordinary shares and entitle the holders to receive by way of dividend any 

profits available for distribution.  The four classes of ordinary shares rank pari passu but constitute separate 

classes of share. 

The A1 Ordinary shares do not entitle the holder to attend or vote at any general meeting or on any resolution 

proposed to members. 

The A2 Ordinary shares entitle the holders to receive notice and to vote at general meetings on the basis that 

5,000 A2 Ordinary Shares shall represent 5% of the total voting rights attaching to the Ordinary Shares. 

The B1 and B2 Ordinary shares entitle the holders to receive notice and to vote at general meetings on the 

basis of one vote per share. 

Reconciliation of the number of shares 

A1 

ordinary 

shares 

A2 

ordinary 

shares 

B1 

ordinary 

shares 

B2 

ordinary 

shares 

Total 

number of 

shares 
      

At 31 October 2019 112,025 15,000 809,375 30,625 967,025 

Shares issued during the period 20,000 - 400 - 20,400 

Re-designation - - (1,744) 1,744 - 

 
     

At 31 October 2020 132,025 15,000 808,031 32,369 987,425 
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27. Share based payments 

The group has an employee benefit trust (“EBT”), whereby the group, at the discretion of the Board, award 

ordinary class of shares in the company to employees. The EBT is administered by the Trustee, as appointed by 

the company. The Trustee may consider any recommendations made by the company but the company has no 

power to direct the Trustee to comply with such recommendations. The company has the power to the appoint 

and remove Trustees. 

Shares can also be awarded, at the discretion of the Board, directly to employees.  

Ordinary shares awarded to employees vest on a sale or public listing of the group. 

At 31 October 2020 there were 20,000 A1 ordinary shares awarded to employees. 

During the year ended 31 October 2020 the group has recorded a share based payment charge of £17,321 

(period ended 31 October 2019: £nil). 

For the ordinary shares awarded in the year, management has used a Black-Scholes valuation model to 

determine the price of the ordinary shares at grant date. The valuation model inputs used to determine the fair 

value at the grant date were: 

Risk-free rate: 1.75% 

Expected volatility: 80% 

28. Reserves 

The motive and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows: 

Reserve    Description and purpose 

Retained earnings Cumulative net gains and losses from recognised earnings in the consolidated income 

statement 

Hedging reserve Cumulative net gains and losses from highly effective hedging instrument derivative 

movements recognised initially in the consolidated statement of total comprehensive 

income before being recycled into the consolidated income statement when the 

hedging instrument matures 

Treasury shares 

reserve 

Shares held in the company by an Employee Benefit Trust (“EBT”) which is 

presented as a deduction from equity. The EBT is considered to be under the control 

of the company and as such is consolidated under the provisions of IFRS 10. 

Share premium Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value, and deduction of 

costs of raising equity. 
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29. Net cash flow from operating activities 

 

Group   

2020 

£’000 

11 May 

2018 – 31 

October 

2019 

£’000 
     

Operating loss   (18,166) (13,223) 

Fair value movement in deferred and contingent 

consideration payable   
(2,993) 980 

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets   19,552 20,844 

Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and 

equipment   
14,756 15,061 

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment   1,311 2,280 

Equity settled share based payment expense   17 - 

Decrease/(increase) in inventories   62 (2,306) 

Increase in receivables   (6,973) (2,987) 

Increase in payables   835 8,981 

   
  

Net cash inflow from operations   8,401 29,630 
     

The subsidiary undertakings acquired during the period contributed £(893,000) (2019: £29,630,000) to the group's 

net operating cash flows. 
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30. Analysis of cash flows for headings netted in cash flow statement 

 

 

2020 

£’000 

11 May 

2018 – 31 

October 

2019 

£’000 

Taxation   

Corporation tax paid (392) (507) 

 
  

Investing activities   

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (19,797) (28,352) 

Purchase of intangible software assets (997) (2,609) 

Proceeds from disposal of assets 172 2,978 

Purchase of subsidiary undertakings (net of cash acquired) – note 17 (15,110) (121,792) 

Deferred consideration settled (3,483) (2,425) 

 
  

Net cash outflow from investing activities (39,215) (152,200) 

 
  

Financing activities   

   

Debt   

New bank acquisition facility drawdown (net of fees) 76,905 345,195 

Capital repayment of lease liabilities (2,449) (908) 

Repayment of bank loan - (210,653) 

Repayment of loan note (984) - 

Settlement of debt acquired with a subsidiary undertaking - (49) 

Proceeds from issue of shares 20 - 

Purchase of parent company shares by EBT (81) - 

Derivatives - 481 

 
  

Net cash inflow from financing activities 73,411 134,066 
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31. Consolidated reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt and analysis of changes in net debt 

 

  

2020 

£’000 

11 May 2018 to 

31 October 2019 

£’000 
    

Increase in cash in the period  20,507 10,989 

Cash outflow from movement in debt and lease financing  (78,451) (149,834) 

  
  

Change in net debt resulting from cash flows  (57,944) (138,845) 

    

Loans and finance leases acquired with subsidiary  (206) (522,390) 

Assets acquired on finance leases  (2,880) (2,653) 

Lease liabilities on transition to IFRS 16  (3,032) - 

Amortisation of fees  (2,591) (2,354) 

Redeemable preference share interest  (42,284) (45,867) 

Other non-cash movements  (2,162) 967 

  
  

Movement in net debt in the period  (111,099) (711,142) 

  
  

    

Net debt at start of the period  (711,142) - 

  
  

    

Net debt at end of the period  (822,241) (711,142) 

  
  

    

 

 

11 May 2018 

£’000 

Cash flow 

£’000 

Acquisitions 

£’000 

Non cash  

£’000 

31 October 

2019 

£’000 
      

Cash at bank and in hand - 10,989 - - 10,989 

      

Debt      

Debt due within one year - - (1,237) - (1,237) 

Debt falling due after more 

than one year 
- (150,742) (520,177) (47,254) (718,173) 

Finance leases - 908 (976) (2,653) (2,721) 

 
     

 - (138,845) (522,390) (49,907) (711,142) 
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31. Consolidated reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt and analysis of changes in net debt 

 (continued) 

 

 

31 October 

2019 

£’000 

Cash flow 

£’000 

Acquisitions 

£’000 

Non cash  

£’000 

31 October 

2020 

£’000 
      

Cash at bank and in hand 10,989 20,507 - - 31,496 

      

Debt      

Debt due within one year (1,237) 984 - (34) (287) 

Debt falling due after more 

than one year 
(718,173) (81,884) - (46,683) (846,740) 

Finance leases (2,721) 2,449 (206) (6,232) (6,710) 

 
     

 (711,142) (57,944) (206) (52,949) (822,241) 

 
     

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three 

months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. The carrying amount of these assets is approximately equal 

to their fair value. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the consolidated 

statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items in the consolidated balance sheet position as 

shown above. There was no bank overdraft in either period. 

32. Major non-cash transactions 

In the current period, major non-cash transactions include amortisation of loan costs and non-cash interest 

charges as shown in note 31.   

33. Guarantees 

A guarantee has been given by the group in favour of HMRC to a limit of £700,000. 

The group makes use of bank facilities on a group wide basis, whereby certain companies guarantee the borrowings 

of the others. Details of the group's borrowings are given in note 22. 

34. Pension commitments 

The group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. During the period contributions of £1,544,000 

(2019: £1,280,000) were charged to the Consolidated Income Statement, there was £225,000 (2019: £164,000) 

outstanding at the period end in respect of this. 
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35. Operating lease arrangements 

At 31 October 2020 the group had total commitments under non-cancellable other operating leases as follows:
    

Group 

31 October 

2020 

£’000 

Motor vehicles 

31 October 

2020 

£’000 

Property 

31 October 

2019 

£’000 

Motor vehicles 

31 October 

2019 

£’000 

Property 
     

Expiry date:     

Within 1 year - - 1,256 411 

Between 2 and 5 years - - 1,850 1,407 

Greater than 5 years - - - 1,275 

 
    

Total - - 3,106 3,093 
     

 

From 1 November 2019, the group has recognised all leases as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except 

for short-term and low-value leases under the provisions of IFRS 16. See note 21 for further information. 

As set out in note 5 machine rental income earned during the period was £49,309,000 (2019: £56,522,000) in 

relation to critical asset equipment on operating leases held on client’s premises.  All of the assets held have 

fixed expiry dates and lease terms are typically for up to 8 years.  The weighted average unexpired term is 6.0 

years (2019: 4.7 years). The lessee does not have an option to purchase the critical asset equipment at the 

expiry of the lease period. 

At the balance sheet date, the group had contracted with lessees the future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods:  

Group  

31 October 

2020 

£’000 

31 October 

2019 

£’000 
    

    

Not later than one year  44,588 43,108 

Later than one year and not later than five years  129,615 129,807 

Later than 5 years  39,881 34,909 
    

36. Related party transactions 

Balances and transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been 

eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. 

During the year, monitoring fees of £307,000 (2019: £331,000) were charged to the group from its ultimate 

controlling party, Cinven Partners LLP. There was a balance of £90,000 (2019: £93,000) at the statement of 

financial position date. 
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37. Financial instruments 

Significant accounting policies 

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (including the criteria for recognition, the 

basis of measurement and the bases for recognition of income and expenses) for each class of financial asset, 

financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3. 

The group's principal financial instruments comprise interest bearing loan notes and bank borrowings. The 

main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the group's operations. The group has various other 

financial assets and liabilities such as cash balances, receivables and trade and other payables that arise from its 

operations, as well as derivative financial instruments. 

The group's activities expose it to various financial risks: market risk (foreign exchange risk and interest risk), 

liquidity risk and credit risk. 

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 

Derivatives are transacted to mitigate financial risks that arise as a result of the group’s operating activities and 

funding arrangements. At the inception of a hedge, the group documents the relationship between the hedging 

instrument and the hedged item, the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. 

The group assesses whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or 

cash flows of the hedged item at inception and it also assesses whether the hedge has been and will continue to 

be effective on an ongoing basis. 

All derivatives are initially recognised at fair value and are also measured at fair value at each reporting date. 

Derivatives with positive fair values are recognised as assets and those with negative fair values as liabilities. 

They are also categorised as current or non-current according to the maturity of each derivative. All gains or 

losses arising due to changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in profit or loss except when the 

derivative qualifies for cash flow hedge accounting. 

Cash flow hedges 

The group designates derivatives into a cash flow hedge where they have been transacted to hedge a highly 

probable forecast transaction or a particular risk associated with an asset or liability. The effective portion of 

the change in the fair value of the derivatives, that are designated into cash flow hedge relationships, are 

recognised in other comprehensive income. Cumulative gains or losses on derivatives are reclassified from 

other comprehensive income into profit or loss in the period when the transaction occurs. Any ineffective 

portion of the gain or loss on the derivative is immediately recognised in profit or loss.  The group has a 

centralised treasury function which manages funding, liquidity and other financial risk.  

The objective of the policy and controls that are established are to mitigate the risk of an adverse impact on the 

performance of the group as a result of its exposure to financial risks arising from the group’s operations and 

its sources of finance. It is the group’s policy not to engage in speculative trading of financial instruments.   

The Board retains ultimate responsibility for treasury activity and is involved in key decision making.  

Foreign exchange risk 

The majority of purchases made by the group are denominated in sterling, however a substantial portion of 

trade purchases are made in other currencies, primarily the Euro and US dollar. The group’s objective is to 

reduce short term profit volatility from exchange rate fluctuations. The group monitors its unhedged currency 

risks and uses forward exchange contracts to mitigate these risks. 

At the balance sheet date, the group was assessing the forecast purchases in US dollar and Euros versus the US 

dollar and Euro cash balances arising from the forward contracts entered into in the prior year. The group will 

evaluate whether to enter into new forward contracts at the appropriate time in accordance with group policy. 
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37. Financial instruments (continued) 

Currency risk 

The group is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a currency 

other than GBP, primarily the Euro (€) and US Dollars ($). 

The group’s exposure to foreign currency risk may be summarised as follows: 

 31 October 2020 31 October 2019 

 

US Dollars 

$’000 

Euros 

€’000 

US Dollars 

$’000 

Euros 

€’000 
    

Trade receivables  - 253 - 120 

Trade payables (2,026) (3,616) (2,334) (1,342) 

Bank 5,022 7,810 3,051 1,097 

 
    

Balance sheet exposure 2,996 4,447 717 (125) 
     

The following exchange rates applied during the period: 

 

2020 

Average rate 

31 October 

2020 

Period end 

spot rate 
   

US Dollar 1.26 1.29 

Euro 1.10 1.10 
   

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will not be able to meet its obligations as they fall due. The group 

evaluates and continuously monitors the amount of liquid funds needed for business operations. The group has 

a £355 million long term bank loan with a £50 million revolving credit facility, secured until between 15 

August 2024 and 15 August 2026 to support its short and medium term liquidity needs.  

On 28 February 2020, the group secured additional loan facilities to its 1st and 2nd lien term loans. A 

£30,000,000 Facility B2 Senior loan was secured and fully drawn on the same terms as the 1st lien term loan, 

repayable on 15 August 2025. A £10,000,000 Facility B2 Second Lien was secured and fully drawn on the 

same basis as the 2nd lien term loan, repayable on 15 August 2026. 

On 28 February 2020, the group secured a new Acquisition & Capex Facility (“ACF”) of £40,000,000, which 

can be used to refinance existing bank debt, acquisitions or capital expenditure. The ACF was secured on the 

same terms as the 1st lien term loan. The ACF is available to draw until 28 August 2022, with any drawn 

balance repayable on 15 August 2025. 

Interest risk 

The group's exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to obligations on bank borrowings, which are based 

on LIBOR. There are no conditions in the senior funding agreement regarding fixing any portion of the interest 

risk. 

As at the balance sheet date 0% of the group’s total borrowings are at fixed rate.  At the reporting date, the 

sensitivity to a reasonable possible change (+/– 0.5%) in the LIBOR rates would equate to a £2.3 million 

(2019: £1.8 million) post tax profit or loss exposure in relation to the unhedged interest rate exposures over the 

next 12 months.  
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37. Financial instruments (continued) 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 

to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the group’s receivables from customers. 

The group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The 

demographics of the group’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry in which customers 

operate, has less of an influence on credit risk.  

The group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for 

creditworthiness before the group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered.  

The group’s review includes external ratings, where available, and in some cases references. Purchase limits 

are established for each customer, which represents the maximum open amount without requiring approval.  

Customers that fail to meet the group’s benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the group only on a 

prepayment basis or after payment of an upfront deposit. 

Goods are sold subject to retention of title clauses, so that in the event of non-payment the group may have a 

secured claim. The group does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables. 

The group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of 

trade and other receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates 

to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component established for groups of similar assets in 

respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified. This is then assessed by industry sector to 

enable an evaluation of the estimate of incurred losses for its reasonableness. 

The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment statistics for similar financial 

assets. The reconciliation of the allowance for doubtful debts account for the period is shown below: 

Group 

2020 

£’000 

2019 

£’000 
   

At 31 October 2019 647 - 

Balance acquired  665 1,565 

Used in the period (404) (1,310) 

Created in the period 2,400 392 

 
  

At 31 October 2020 3,308 647 
   

The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure at the 

reporting date was: 

Group 

31 October 

2020 

£’000 

31 October 

2019 

£’000 
   

Trade receivables 24,947 15,791 

Cash and cash equivalents 31,496 10,989 

 
  

 56,443 26,780 
   

 

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are 

banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. 
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37. Financial instruments (continued) 

Fair values 

Most of the group's financial instruments are carried at fair value in the Statement of Financial Position. For 

certain other financial instruments, specifically trade and other receivables/payables, the carrying amounts 

approximate to fair value due to the immediate or short term nature of these financial instruments. 

 

 As of 31 October 2020 As of 31 October 2019 

Financial assets 

Group 

£’000 

Company 

£’000 

Group 

£’000 

Company 

£’000 
     

Current     

Cash and bank balances  31,496 61 10,989 41 

Trade and other receivables 34,969 5 23,552 15 

Non-current     

Amounts owed by group undertakings - 379,187 - 341,654 

 
    

           Total financial assets 66,465 379,253 34,541 341,710 
 

    

Financial liabilities     

Current     

Trade and other payables (40,705) (2,750) (42,990) (677) 

Obligations under leases (2,461) - (701) - 

Interest bearing loans and borrowings (287) - (1,237) - 

Derivative financial instruments (40) - (481) - 

Non-current     

Trade and other payables – non-current - - - - 

Interest bearing loans and borrowings (846,740) (395,790) (718,172) (353,506) 

Obligations under leases (4,249) - (2,020) - 

 
    

           Total financial liabilities (894,482) (398,540) (765,601) (354,183) 
     

 

Fair value hierarchy 

As at 31 October 2020, the group held the following financial instruments carried at fair value in the Statement 

of Financial Position: 

Foreign exchange forward contracts 

The group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by 

valuation technique: 

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities 

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are 

observable, either directly or indirectly 

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based 

on observable market data. 

Derivative financial instruments are level 2 and all other financial instruments are level 3. 
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38. Ultimate parent company and parent undertaking of a larger group 

The largest and smallest group in which the results of the company were consolidated was that headed by JLA 

Acquisitions Topco Limited, which is incorporated in Jersey.  

The ultimate majority shareholder is the Sixth Cinven Fund. The partnerships comprising the Sixth Cinven 

Fund are established in Guernsey and are managed and controlled by Cinven Capital Management (VI) 

General Partner Limited. Approximately 26.5% of the Sixth Cinven Funds investment is held through two 

Luxembourg sociétés en commandite spéciales: Sixth Cinven FD 1 Lux SCSp and Sixth Cinven FD 2 Lux 

SCSp (together, the “SCSp vehicles”). The SCSp vehicles are both managed by their general partner (associé 

commandité), Cinven Lux GP (VI) S.a.r.l. 


